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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Members of Dr. Agarwal’s Eye Hospital Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dr. Agarwal’s Eye Hospital
Limited (“the Company"”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
(*Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit, total comprehensive income,
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specifiad under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our repert. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. We have
determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

« The Company’s Board of Directors is respansible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the management discussion and
analysis report, Board Report, Corporate Governance Report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

» Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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« In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

» If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative buf to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs wili
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
igher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve coilusion, forgery,
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« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditoer’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b)

F)

g)

h)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. The Company's
daily backup of it accounting records are maintained in servers physically located
outside India (Refer Note 37.A to the financial statements).

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

In our apinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31 March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appoeinted as a director in terms of
Section 164(2} of the Act.

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith, are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A", Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 34 to the financial
statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes te the financial statements,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from berrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“"Intermediaries”}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s} or
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a}) and {(b) above, contain
any material misstatement.

v. The final dividend proposed for the previous year, declared and paid by the
Company during the year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as
applicable.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f.
01 April 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended
31 March 2023.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 0080725)

r il
P\ KPV‘M Q\W_ﬂ k,ﬁr#"{—'_jl_ '
R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner
(Membership No. 214045)
(UDIN: 23214045BGWJIZB3052)

Place: Chennai
Date: 06 May 2023
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
{"the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Dr. Agarwal’'s Eye Hospital Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controis with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controis with reference to
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to
ovide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of coliusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, fo the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us with, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the
criteria for internal financial control with reference to financial statements established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 0080725)

R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner

{(Membership No. 214045)
(UDIN: 23214045BGWIZB3052)

Place: Chennai
Date: 06 May 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(i) In respect of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

(a)

(i The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment,
Capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets except in the
case of Property, Plant and Equipment, where the Company is in the process of
updating the records for quantitative details and situation of certain assefs.

(ii) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress, and right-of-use assets

(c)

(d)

(e)

(ii)

were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a
regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical
verification at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable properties, which are reported under
Property, Plant and Equipment and, hence, reporting under clause(i)(c) of the
CARO 2020 is not applicable.

In respect of immovable properties of fand and building that have been taken on
lease and disclosed as Right of use assets as at the Balance sheet date, the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (inctuding
right of use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31 March 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared
with books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at any point
of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the quarterly returns or statements (comprising stock statements and
other stipulated financial information) filed by the Company with such banks are in
agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective
quarters.
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(iii) The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security,
and granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year,
and, hence, reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees/
security to any other entity during the year and, hence, reporting under clause (iv)
of the CARO 2020 is not applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained the cost records which has been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly
reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended and prescribed by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and
maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Income-tax, duty of
Custom, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have
generally been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities except for
few delays in respect of dues towards provident fund due to delay in
KYC verification and labour welfare fund.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of Custom,
Professional Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at
31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable except for provident fund and labour welfare fund aggregating
Rs. 0.04 crores.

(c) There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited on account of disputes as on 31 March 2023.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961) during the year.

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defauited in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.
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(x)

(¢} To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which
the loans were obtained, other than temporary deployment pending application.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year
for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during
the year and, hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the
year and, hence, reporting on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable

{(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and, hence, reporting under
clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) during the year and, hence,
reporting under clause {x}{(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations

given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

{b) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the
date of this report.

(c) As represented by the Management , there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year and up to the date of this report.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and, hence, reporting under clause (xii) of the

CARO 2020 Order is not applicable.

(xiii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,

the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the
year and covering the period up to 31 March 2023, in determining the nature, timings
and extent of our audit procedures.
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(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons
connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicable.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and, accordingly, reporting
under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The
Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a
transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account
in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.
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(xxi} The Company does not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the
year and hence, is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, clause (xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

R Tres et .

R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner

(Membership No. 214045)
(UDIN: 23214045BGWIZB3052)

Place: Chennai
Date: 06 May 2023



Dz, Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Balance Sheet as 24 315t March 2023
{Amaunt in Rs. Crores)
. Asat Asat
Retlcilars MOteNO- | aisemarchzozs | 3astmarch 2022
I. ASSETS
(1) Noa-current assets
{a} Property, Plant and Equipment 5{a) 85.31 583z
{b] Right-cf-use assets 6 173.82 153.73
{c} Capital work-in-progress 5(8] 62.21 2647
{d) Gaodwill 7 018 0.18
{e} Other intangible assets 7 0.96 148
{f) Financial assets
(i} Other financial assets g 711 676
{g} Deferred tax assets [net) 10.1 971 .74
{h} Non-Current tax assets {Net) 9.1 041 122
(i} Other nen—<urrent assets 11 159 561
Total non-currant assets 343.40 264.01
(2} Current assets
{a) Inventories 12 6.00 573
{b} Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 13 1011 8.67
(it} Cash and cash equivalents 14{a) 27.38 28.11
[iii} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14{b} 072 0.69
[iv) Other financial assets 15 211 3.76
(<) Other current assets 11 0.22 3.04
Total current assets 46.54 50.00
TOTAL ASSETS 389.94 314.01
Il. EQENTY AND UABILITIES
(1) Equity
{a} Equity share capltal 16 470 4.70
{b} Other equity 17 108 64 73.47
Total Equity 11334 78.17
(2) Non-current liakilities
{a) Financial Lizbilitizs
{i} Borrowings 18 3577 20.71
{ia} Lease Liabilities 38 17797 i56.42
fii} ©ther financial Habilities 23 158 6.7
{h) Provisions 1% 6.20 4,66
T2l Nee - Currant Liabilities | — £21.52 182.49
! : |
{3) Current lahilities
(&} Financiai Liakilities
(1) Borrowings 21 8.08 11.23
(fa} Lease liabilitles 38 10.67 5.10
(i} Trade payables 22
- Total cutstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises 228 193
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and sralt 2441 23.74
anterprises
(i) Other financial liabilities 23 452 6.86
(b} Other current liabilfties 20 4.10 3.66
(¢} Provisions 19 1.04 .83
Total current fiabilities 55.08 53.35
Total liahifities 276.60 235.84
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 389.94 334.01
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
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Dr. Agarwal's Eye Haspital Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2023

{Armount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. 31st March 2023 31stMarch 2022
| Revenue from operations 24 267.89 201.21
11 Cther income 25 1.76 1.26
1l Totalincome {1+11} 269.65 202.47
IV Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 26 30.68 23.67
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade 27 [0.87 (0.81)
Employee benefits expense 28 53.26 38.51
Finance costs 29 &5.87 6.23
Depreciation and amaortisation expense 30 20.18 20.39
Other expenses 31 110.13 82.17
Total expenses 220.25 170,16
V' Profit before tax {l1I-iv) 49.40 32.31
VI Tax expense
{a) Current tax 9.2 12.33 821
{b} Deferred tax 10.2 C.15 0.00
12.48 8.21
Vil Profit for the year (V-vI) 36.92 24.10
Vil Other comprehensive income
[tems that will not be redassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 353 (0.48) (0.79)
{k] Income tax relating to iters that will not be 0.13 0.20
reclassified to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive loss for the year {0.35) {0.59)
ir  Total comerehensive fncnme for the year (ViV} 36.57 .. 23.81
Earnings per equity share [Face value of Rs.19/- 2ach) 32
{a} Basic{in Rs.} 78.55 5129
|b] Diluted (in Rs.} 78.55 51.29

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

Interms of our report attached
Far Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
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Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited

Cash Flow

as on 3Ist March 2023

{Amount in Rs. Crores)
—_ ¥ear ended Year ended
rionsrs 31t March 2023 315t March 2022
A, Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 3692 24.10
Adjustments fi
Add: Income taxes {current and deferved taxes) 12,48 8.21
Add: Depreciation and amortisation expenses 20,18 20.38
Add: Finance costs / Interest expense 6.87 6.43
tess: Interest income on deposits with banks {0.20} (0.16}
Lass: Profit from sale of Property, Plant and Equipments / assets discarded {0.03) (0.23}
{Net)
Add: Allowance for expected credit [osses {including bad debts written off) 0.80 1.32
Less: Liabilities written back (0.24) =
Less: Other financial assets at amertized cost (058) 0.38)
Operating profit befere working capital and other changes 76.20 53.49
Movements in working capital:
{Increase) / Decrease in inventories {0.27} {0.51)
{Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables {1.98) {1.22)
{Increass) / Decrease in other non current and current financial assets 1.320 218
(increase) f Decrease in other assets {currant) 2.82 {2.67)
Increase / (Decrease) In trade payables, other current and non-current 3.07 8.34
Ifabilities and provisions
Lhanges in working capital and other changes 4.99 622
Cash generated from operations £1.14 6561
Income taxes [paid] - net of refunds {1152 {8.93}
Met tash generated from pperating activities 69.62 56.68
B. Cash flaws fram investing activities
Payment towards acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment {70.84) 46.73)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.07 032
Increase in bank balances not cansidered as ~=sh and cash equivalents 0044 10.03)
Interesk received « n fixed deposit 0.20 0.J¢ |
Met cash {used in) investing activities (70.61) (46.28)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Long-tarm borrowing taken 20.00 25.7%
Long-term borrowing [repaid) ) {14.57}
Shaort-term borrowings taker 0.94 (3.87}
Shaort-term bomrowings taken (repaid) (9.05) 3.00
Dividend paid {1.41} (0.02}
Finance costs pald on borrowings (1.78) (1.79)
Payment of lease liabilities (3.44) {12.31)
Met cash from/{used in) financing activities 0.26 (3.81]
Net increasef{dedarsase) in cash and cash equivatents [A+B+C] {0.73} 6.59
Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the year 28.11 21.52
Cash and cash equivaleats at the end of the year 27.38 2851
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.57 0.53
Balances with hanks 26.81 27.58
Cash and cash 4 at the and of the year 27.38 28.11

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Accountants
FRN : D0B0725 ’\<
P ‘(Pyv,g_g ol
e Yeoo .
-~
R. Prasanna Verkatesh
Partner
MRN : 214045
S
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Date: 06 May 2023
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Dr, Amar Agarwal
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) D, Athiva Agarwal

Wholetime Director
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Mr. B. Udhay Shankar
Chief Financial Officer
Place : Chennai
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Place : Chennai
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Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hespital Limited

Motes farming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

R
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Corporate Infgrmation

Dr. Agarwal's Fye Hospital Limited |‘the Company') {CIN: LBS 110TN1934PLCO27366) was incorporated an 22 April 1994 and is primarily engaged in providing eye care
and related services. As at 31 March 2023, the Company is operating (n 31 locations and has one ceniral stare. Or. Agarwal‘s Health Care Limited is the holding
Company as at 31 March 2023,

Application of new and revised Ind AS

All the Indian Accounting Standards issued and notified by the Ministry of Carporate Affairs under the Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
smended] till the financial siatements are authorised have been considered in preparing these financisl statements. There 7= no other Indian Accounting Standard
that has been jssued as of that date but was not mandatorily effective.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs [“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (indlan Accounting Standards] Rules as
issued from time ta time. On 31 March 2023, MCA amended the Campanies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind A5 1-F ion of Financial § 15 -

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting palicies rather than their significant accounting palicies, The effective date for adoption of
this amendment is annual periads beginning on or after B Aprit 2023.

ind AS £ - Acraunting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errars -

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendmients to Ind AS B to help entities distinguish changes in zccounting
palicies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adaptian of this amendment is antual periods beginning on or after 01 April 2023

ind AS 12 - Income Taxes -

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recegnition exemption so that it does not @pply to transactions that give rise to squal and offsetting
ternporary differences. The effective date for adopticn of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01 April 2023,

The Company is in the pracess of evaluating the impact of the above on the financial statements.

Significant Accpunting Palicies
Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accardance with Indlan Accounting Standards notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and the refevant amendment rules issued from time to time.
The company has consistently applied aceounting palicies to all periods.

Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Fmanciat Statements

These financizl statements have been prepared on the historicel cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fawr values at the end of
each reporting perfod, as explained in accounting palicies balow. Historical cost is generally based an the fair value of the consideratian given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value Ts the price that would be received te sell an asset or pafd to transfer a liability in an arderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liahility, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liahility if market participants wauld take those characteristics nto account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reparting purposes, fair value measuremrants are categorised inta Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the falr value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are deseribed as follows:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
« Level 2 inputs are ingots, ather than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are chservable far the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
» Level 2 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liahility.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and assumptiens considered in the reported amounts of assets and
liahilities {including contingent liabilities) as of the date of the financial statements and the reported incame and expenses during the reporting period. Examptes of
such estimates include provision for expected credit losses, provision for empioyee benefits, useful lves of fixed assets, lease term, provision for contingencies ate
Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results may vary from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongaing basis, Revisions ta accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the year in
which the estimate is revised and/er in future years, as applicable

Cash and Cash Equivalents (for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash cemprises cash an hand, cheques and demand drafts en hand, balances with banks i current accounts f demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term
balances (with an original maturity of three menths or less from the date of acquisition}, highly kiquid investments that are readily convertible inte known amounts af
cash and which sre subjact to insignificant risk of thanges in value. Bank balances other than the balance included in cash and cash equivalents represents balance
an account of unpaid dividend and mergin money depasit with banks.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby grofit / ([oss} before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of nan-cash nature and any deferrals
ar accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and finandng activities aof the Company are segregated based on
the availabie information.
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3.3

Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes farming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 315t March 2023

Functional and Presentation Currency

[tems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary ecanomic envirenment in which the Campany operates
fi.e. the "functional currency”). The financial statements are presented [n Indian Rupees (Rs.), the national currency of India, which is the functional curreney of the
Company. All the finzacial information have been presented in Indian Rupess except for share data and as otherwise stated.

Dperating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Campany and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in zash or cash equivalents, the
Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 snanths for the purpose of dassification of its assets and liabitities 25 current and non-current.

Praperty, Plant B Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated 2t cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss [if any). The cost of Property, Plant and
Fquipmant comprises its purchase arice nat of any trade discounts ane rebates and includes taxes, duties, freight, and any cost directly attributable ta bringing the
asset to the location and conditian necessary for it to be capable for aperating in the manner intended by the management and is net of Goods and Service Tax
(65T}, wherever the credit is availed. Borrawing costs paid during the period of canstruction in respect of borrowed funds pertaining to construction / acquisition af
qualifying aroperty, plant and equiprent is adjusted to the carrying cost of the underlying preperty, plant and equipment.

Any part or components of property, plant and equipment which are separately iden
mafn assets are capitalized separately, based on the technical of the

ble and expected to have a useful lita which is different from that of the

Advances paid towards the acquisition of Praperty, Plant and Equipment autstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as “Capital Advances” under Other
Non Current Assets and cost of Property, Plant and Equipment not ready to use befare such date are disclosed under “Capital Work-in-Progress”.

Depreciztinn

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset fess its estimated residual value

Depreciation an tangible property, plant 2nd equipment has heen provided on the straight line method| refer Note 5.1(a) for change in method of depreciation
effective 1st April 2022) as per the useful [ife prescribed in Schedule Il ta the Companies Act, 2013 except in cases of certain assets where the management’s
estimate of the useful life hased on technical assessment is less than the life prescribed in Schedule |l in which case depreciation is provided on the useful life as
assessed by the menagement.

Category \ Wseful life
Leasehold Improvements \ Qver {ease term
Medical Eguipments | 1-15 years
Office Equipments 9 - Byears
Vehicles 8years
Computers 3-6 years
Flectrical Fittings 10 years
Furniture and Fixtures 8-10 years
Lab Equipments 10 years

Intangible Assets

Intangible sssets with finite useful lives that are scquired separately are camied at cost |ess arcumulated amertisation and accumulated impairment losses {if any}
software is amartised on a straight fine basis aver the ficanse period or three years, whichever is lower. Other intangibles are amertised based on the estimated
useful life as determined. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed a1 the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are scquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
Impairment losses,

An Intangible assets is derecagnised on disposal or when na future ecenamic benefits are expected from use of disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible assets measured a5 the difference hetween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the ssset as recognised in profit or lass when the
asset is derecognised.




Br. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes forming part of tha Financial far the Year £nded 31st March 2023

310 impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assats
At the end of each reparting period, the Company reviews the earrying amaunts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exfsis, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in arder to determine the extent
of the Impairment loss [if any). Whera it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also aliocated to
indivlduza| cash-generating units, or stherwise they are allocated to the smallest graup of cash-generating units for which a reasanable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not vet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount {s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing valie in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thair
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estirmates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recaverable amaunt of an asset {or cash-generating unit} Ts estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the zarrying amount of the asset lor cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amaunt. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset 5s carried at a
revalued armount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease

When an impainment 1oss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or a cash generating uni) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have beer determinad had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment {oss is recognised immediately in profit or loss

3.11 Inventories

Inventary of Tradet Goads comprising Opticals, Pharmaceutical Products, Comtart Lenses 2nd Acressories, Consumables and Provisions - Food Items are valued at
lower of tost ascertained using the First-in-First-out method and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase, freight, taxes, duties and other charges incurred
for bringing the goads to the present location and condition and are net of GST credit, where applicable.

Met realisable value represents the estimated seling price far inventories less all estimated costs of completian and costs necessary to make the sale

Due allowance is estimated and made for unusable/ nen-saleable/ expired items of inventory wherever necessary, based on the past experience of the Company
and such allowances are adjusted against the ventory carying value.

3,12 Revenue Recognition
A i) Revenue fram Operations

fevenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of contral of promised products or services 1o
customers in an ameunt that reflects the consideration we expect ta racefve in exchange far those products or services. Sales and Service Income exclude Goods and
Service Tax (G5T} and are net of trade / valume discounts, where appiicable.

Sale of products comprising Sale of Optical Frames and Lens, Pharmaceutical Praducts, Contact Lens and related accessories and faad items is recognised on delivery
of items to the customers and when control on goods s passed on 1o the customers.

Sale of services comprising Income from Cansultation, Surgeries, Treatments and Investigations performed are recognised when perfarmance obligation is satisfied
at 3 point in time, on rendering the related services.

DOther Operating Income comprises medical support services provided by the Company and is recognised on rendering the related services.

A [ii) Other incoma

Interest incame from a financial asset is recognised when 7 is prabable that the ecanamic benafits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured relizbly. Interest incame is accrued an a time basis, by reference ta the principal cutstanding and ai the effectiva interest rate applicable, which i the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected Iife of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Dividend Income is accaunted for whan right to receiva it 1s established.

B. Cross Charges

The Company accounts for costs incurred by / on biehalf of the Related Parties based on the actual inveices / debit notes raised and accruals as canfirmed by such
related parties. The Company incurs cartain costs on behalf of other campanies in the gravp. These costs have been aliccated/recovered from the graup companies
on & basis mutually agreed to with the group companies.

3.13 Fereign Currency Transactions

Initial Recognition:
On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Subsegquent Recegnition:
As at the reporting date, non monetary ftemms which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated 0 a fareign cusrency are reported using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

Treatment of Exchange Differences:
All monetary assets and liahilities in foreign currency are restzted at the end of accounting period at the closing exchange rate and exchange differences on
restatement of all monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,




Dy, Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

314 Employee Benefits
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits:

i] Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee defined berefit plans include gratuity.

Payments to defined contribution retirament benefit plaps are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them te the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits (s determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at the end of each annual reperting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effact of the changes te the asset ceiling (i
applicable) and the return on plan assets {excluding net Interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with s charge or credit recognised I other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensiva income is reflected immediately In retained earnings
and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of profit or less in the period of a plan s3mendment. Net interest is calculated
by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit lizbility or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

- Service cast {including current service cost, past service cost, as well a5 gains and osses on curtailments and settlements);
- Net interest expense or income; and

- Remeasurement

The Company presents the first two compenents of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the fine item 'Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment galns and losses
are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement henefit abli

tion recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit ar surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus
resulting from this cateulation is limited ta the present value of any economic benefits available in the form af refunds frem the plans ar reductions in future
cantributions ta the plans,

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the eatlier of when the entity can ne jonger withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity
recognises any related restructuring costs

The Company makes contribuiion to a scheme administered by the insurer ta discharge gratuity lisbilities to the employees.

Shart-term and other long-term employee henefits
A |izhility Is recognised for benefits aceruing ta employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the periad the related service is rendered
at the undiscounted amaunt of the henefits expected to be paid in excharge for that service.

Lizbilities recognised in respect of short term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected ta be paid n exchange for the
related service.

Liabllities recognised in respect of other long term employes benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Company 'n respect of services provided by employees up to the reparting date.

i} Pefined Contribution Plans

Employee definad cantribution plans include Pravident Fund and Employee State Insurance.

Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance:

All employees of the Company receive benefits from Provident Fund end Employee's State Insurance, which are defined contribution plans. Beth, the employee and
the Company make monthly centributions to the plan as applicable on employment. The Company has no further abligatians under the plan beyond its monthly
eontributions, The Campany cantributes to the Employes Provident Fund and Employee’s State Insurance seheme maintained by the Central Government of India
and the contributian theraaf is charged ta the Statement of Profit and Loss in the yezr in which the services are rendered by the employees
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Borrawing Costs

Barrowing costs include intersst, amartisation of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign currency barrowings to the extent they are
regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Costs in connection with the borrowing of funds te the extent not directly related ta the acquisition of qualifying
assets are charged to the Statement of Prafit and Loss aver the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allacated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the
periad from commencement of activities relating to constructian / development of the quallfying asset up to the date of capitalisation of such asset are added ta the
cost of the assets. Czpitalisation of barrewing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended perods when active development
activity on the qualifying assets bs interropted.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deductad from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalizatian.
All other berrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss In the period In which they sre incurred.

Gavernment Grants, Subsidies and Export Incentives

Government grants and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them and the
grants / subsidies will be received. Government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire capital assets
are presented by deducting them from the camying value of the assets. The grant is recognised 2s income aver the life of a depreciable asset by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Export benefits, if any, are accounted far in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no unceriainty in receiving the same.

Gavernment grants in the nature of promoters' contribution like investrent subsidy, where no repayment is ordinarily expected in respect thereof, are accaunted in
Reserves and Surplus in Other Equity. Government grants in the form of nen-monetary assets, given at a concessional rate, are recorded on the basis af their
acquisition cost. In case the non-monetary asset is given free of cost, the grant s recarded at a nominal value.

Qther government grants and subsidies are recognised ss incame over the perlods necessary to match them with the costs for which they are intended to
compensate, on a sysiematic basis.

Segmant Reparting

Operating segments reflect the Company's management structure and the way the financial information is regularly reviewad by the Company's Chief operating
decision maker {CODM). The CODM considers the business from both business and product perspective based on the dominant scurce, nature of risks and returns
and the internal organisation and management structure, The operating segments are the segments for which separate financal Infermaticn 7s available and for
which aperating profit / {loss} ameunts are evaluated regularly by the executive Manzgement in deciding how te aliocate resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company, Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment
assets and segment labilities have been Tdentified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating =ctivities af the segment.,

Inter-segment revenue, where agglicable, is aceounted an the basis of transactions which are primarily determined hased on market / fair value facters

Revenue, expenses, assets and habilitles which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allarable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under
“unallacated revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities”.

Leases
The Company's lease asset classes consists of jeases for buildings. The Company, at the inception of a contraci, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not lzase,
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right te control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a consideration,

The Company recognises a right-af-use asset and a Jease fiability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured 3t cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any inftial direct costs incurred
and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the upderlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
recaived. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term.

The lease liahility is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the date, di d using the Comp
incremental borrawing rate. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising fram a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
Campany’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, ar if the Campany changes its assessment of whether it will exarcise a
purchase, extznsion ar termination opticn. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or Is recarded in profit or loss if the carrying amaunt of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

¥'s

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease lfahikties for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and [eases of law-
value asssts. The Cempany recognises the lease payrments 3ssociated with these leases as an expense over the {ease term,

Share Based Payments :

The Cempany is covered under the employee stock optian scheme of Dr. Agarwel's Health Care Limited, India {the holding company). Under the plan, the employees
and doctors of the Company 2re granted shares and other stack awards of the halding company, in accordance with the terms and canditions as specified in the
plan. The phan is assessed, managed 2nd administered by the holding company, whose shares and share based benefits have been granted to the employees and
doctors of the Company. The halding company currently operates the plan / scheme of employee stock option ["ESOP") and a share appreciation rights ("SAR"). The
Company has accounted for the zmount of expense under Ind AS 162 considering the invoire received from the holding company taking into account the valuation
carried out in respect of the same and has made the related disclosures requfred under INDAS 102 based on infarmation obtained from the holding company (Refer
HMote 41]

ESOPs:
Equity settled share based payments to the employees of the company are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date

Campensation expense for the Employee Stack Optian Plan [“ESOP") is measured at the option value as on grant date and the cost of the option will be amortised
on a systematic basis which reflects pattern of the vesting of the aptions over the perlod of 4 years.

SARs:

Cash settled share based payments to the dactars of the company Ts remeasured at the value of option at the end of every reporting period. Compensation expense
for the Share Appreciation Rights (“SAR") will be accounted at every reporting date till the date of exercise of the 5ARs based on the information provided by the
halding company (Refer Note 41.2).
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Earnings Per Shara

Basic eamings per share is camputed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPFS is camputed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and alse weighted
avarage nuimber of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential eguity shares

Potential equity shares are deemed Lo be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease earnings per share from zontinuing operstions. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed convertad as of the beginning of the period, unless Issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for
the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the cutstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined independently for sach period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted far share splits / reverse
share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Taxes on Income
income tax expense represents the serm of the tax curremly paysble and deferred tax.

Current tax expense for the year is ascertained on the basis of assessable profits computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 19561

Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT] paid as current tax expense in accardance with the 1ax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future
incarne tax liablity, is cansidered as tax credit and recognised as deferred tax asset when there is reasonable certainty that the Company will pay normal income tax
in the future years and future economic henefit associated with it will flow to the Company. The carrying amount is reviewed at the end of each reporting pariad and
reduced to the extert that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to he recovered.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Fabilities in the Financial Statements and the carresponding tax
bases used in the computatian of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that faxahle profits will be available a2gainst which those deductible
temporary differences can be tilised. Sueh deferrad tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temparary difference arises from the initial recogniticn (other
than in 2 business combiration) of zssets and liakilities in a transaction that affects nefther the taxable prafit nor the accounting profit

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed 3t the end of each reporting perlod and reduced to the extent that it s na langer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset ta be recovered.

Deferrad tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settied or the asset realised, hased on
tax rates {and tax {aws] that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reparting period.

The measurement of deferrad tax liahilities and assets reflects the tax conseguences that would fallow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the epd
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilitias.

Provisinns, Consingent Liabilities and Cantingent Assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation ({sgal ar constructive) as a result of past events and it [s probable that an outflow of resources
will be reguired to settie the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate ean be made. Provisions are determined based on the best estimate required to settie
the obligation at the batance sheet date and measured using the present value of rash flaws estimated to settle the present obligations (when the effect of time
valize of money is material). These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reffect the current best sstimates.

Contingent liabillty is disclosed for {i] Possible obligatians which will Be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or (1} Present
abligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount
af the obligation cannat be made. The Company does not recagnize a contingent liabllity but discloses its existence in the Financial Statements. Centingent assets
are only diselosed when itis probable that the econemic henefits will flow to the entity.

Insurance claimg

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured
reliabfy.
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Financial Instruments
tnitial Recognition

Financial sssets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the insirument. financial assets and
liabilities are initially measured at fafr value. Transaclion casts that are directiy attributable to the acquisitian or issue of financial assets and financial liabllities {other
than Financial assets and financial liabifities at fair valus through profit or loss {FVTPL)) 2re added te or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of
financial asset o financial liability. The transaction casts directly attrlbutable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Financlal Assets
{a) Recognition and initfal measurement

{1] The Company initially recognises loans and advances, deposits and subordmated liabilities an the date on which they onginate. All other financlal instruments
tincluding regutar way purchases and sales of financial asseis) are recagnised on the trede date, which is the date on which the Company becomes a party ta the
contractual provisians of the instrement. A financial assat or {iability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition ar issue.

(b) Classification af financial assets

On fnitfal recogriticn, & financial asset is classified to be measured at amortised cast, fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTQCH or FYTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated at FYTPL:

» The asset is held within a bhusiness model whase objective is to hold assets to callect contractual cash flows;

+ The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principat and interast on the principal ameunt
autstanding.

For the Impairment policy in financial assets measured at amortised cost, refer Note 3.24.1 (g}
A debt instrument is clzssified as FYTRC only if it meets both of the fallowing conditions and is not recognized at FVTPL:

» The asset is held within a business made! whese objective is achieved by both collecting centractual cash flows and selling financial assets;
« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amoumt
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

{c) Effective interest method

The effeciive interest method is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt Instrument and of allacating interest income over the relevant period The
affective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futyre cash receipts (including afl fees and points paid or received that form an integral part af the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and ather premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter periad,
o the gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

tncome is recognised an an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in
profit or loss and is included in the “Other Income” line item.

{d) Financial assets at fair value thraugh profit or loss {(FVTRL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amartised cost criteria or FVTOCH criteria (see above) are measured at FYTPL In addition, debt Instruments that meet the
amortised cast eriteria or the FYTOC| criteria but are designated as at FVTPL sre measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FYTOCI criteria may be designated as at FYTPL upen initial recognition If
such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition incansistency that would arise from measuring assets or lizbillties or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designsted any debt instrument as at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end af each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising an remeasurement recogrised in profit ar
lass. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other incame' iine
item. Dividend an financiat assets at FVTPL is recagnised when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probiable that the economic benefits
assaciated with the dividend will fiow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be

measured reliably
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(&) Impairment of financial assets

The Campany applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amertised cost, debt mstruments at FYTOCI,
trade recelvables and other cantractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all
cantractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive [i.e. zll cash
shortfalls), discounted at the originzl effective intarest rate {or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).
The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, £all and similar aptions)
through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equaf ta the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the eredit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit [osses. 12-month expected credit losses are
portion of the life-time expacted credit lasses and represent the lifetime cash shertfalls that will result if defawit occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date
and thus, are not cash shartfalls that are predicted over the next 12 moenths.

for trade receivables, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amaount equal ta lifetime expected credit Jesses. Further, for the purpose of maasuring
lifetime sxpected credit foss all & for trade recejvahles, the C has used a practical expedient as permitied under Ind AS 109 This expected cradit loss
allowance is computad based on a provision matrix which takes into account historfcal credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking infermation.

The Company has implemented a policy to wiite off uncollected receivabies from non government parties aged more than two years, based on amalysis of the
collection trends frem such parties. The Company has also implemented 2 policy to write back unapplied receipts aged more than twa years. {Refer Note 13.3}

{f) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecagnises a financial asset when the contractual rghts to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the finencial asset and
substantially al) the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset ta ancther party. if the Company reither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
af awnearship and continues to cantrol the iransferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an assoclated lability for amounts it may
have ta pay, If the Campany retains substantially all the risks and rewards of awneyship of 2 transferrad financial asset, the Company continues ta recognise the
financial asset and alsa recognises a collateralised borrawing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in s entirety, the differsnce between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the cansideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumnulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss
would have otherwise heen recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecagnition of 2 financial asset other than in its entirety {e.g. when the Company retains an aption to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company
allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to reccgnise under continuing involvement, and the part it no langer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference hetween the carrying amount allocated to the part that is
no langar recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive ncome Ts recognised In orofit ar lass if such gain or lass wauld have otherwise been recognisad in profit ar lass on dispasal of
that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allucated between the part that continues ta be
recognised and the part that is no kanger recognised on the basis of the relstive fair values of those parts.

{g) Foreign exchange gains and lasses:

The fair value of financfal assets denominated in a fareign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting
period.

« For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.

= Changes T carrying amaunt of investments in equity instruments at AVTOC] relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recagnised in other comprehensive
income.

# For the purposes of recegnising foreign exchange gains or losses, FYTOC! debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the
exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and ather changes in the fair value of FYTOC! financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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3.24.2 FInancial Liabilities and equity instryments

{a) Classification as debt or equity

Financial liakilities and eguity instruments isstted by the Company are ciassified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial hability and an equrty mstrument

(b} Equity instruments

An equity instrumaent is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilitles. Equity instruments are
recorded at the proteeds received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the Company’s own equlty Instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or lass an the purchase, sale, issue or canceflation of the Company's own equity instraments.

{c) Financial Liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liahilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial iability 1s either held for trading or it is designated as at FYTPL

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; ar

« on initial recognition it is part of a pertfslio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking;

A financial liahility other than a {inancial fiahility held for trading may be designated as at FYTPL upon it/al recognition if;

a such desfgnatlon eliminates or significantiy reduces a measurement or recognition incansistency that wauld otherwise arise; or

a tha financial liability forms part of a Campany of financial assets or financial liabilities or bath, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, In accordance with the Company's dorurnented risk management or investmant strategy, and nformation about the Campanying fs provided internally on
that basis;

{d) Fingneial liahilities subsequently measured at amortised cost:

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FYTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periads.
The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subseguently measured at amortised cost sre determined hased an the effective interest method, Interest
expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is Included in the 'finance costs' line item.

The effective interest methad is a methad of calculating the amortised cost of 2 financizl liability and of alfocating interest expense over the relevant pericd. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exartly discaunts estimated future cash payments {ineluding all fees and points paid o received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and ather premiums or discounts) thraugh the expected life of the financial fiability, or (where appropriate} a shorter
periad, to the net carrying amount on initial recagnition

{e) Foreign exchange gains and losses:

For financial liabitities that are denominated in a foreign currency and measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting periad, the fereign exchange gaing
and losses are determined based on amortised cest of the inslruments and are recognised in the Staterment of Profit and Loss.

The fair value of the financial liabllities denominated in a foreign currency js determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the
reparting periad. Far financial liabiiities that are measured at FYTPL, the fareign exchange component forms part of the fair valuz gains or losses recognised in the
Statement of prafit and Loss.

{F) Derecognition of financial liakilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and anly when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amaunt of the financial liabiity derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.75 Goods & Service Tax Ingut Credit

Goods & Service Tax Input Credit is accounted for in the books during the period in which the underlying Gonds and services received i accaunted and where there
is i@ uncertainty in availing/utilizing the same.

3.26 Critfcal Accaunting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of Finaneizl Statements Tn conformity with Ind AS reguires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about the assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying value of assets or liabilities affected In future periods,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed en an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recagnised in the period in which the estimates are
revised and future perinds are affected.

In particular, informaticn abaut significant areas of estmatian, uncertainty and eritical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recagnized in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

(i) Usaful lives of Property, plant and equipment (Refer Not= 3.8)

{fi) Lease Term of Leases entered by the Company (Refer Note 3.18)

{iii} Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits [Refer Note 3,14}

{iv) Valuation and measurement of inrcome taxes and deferred taxes (Refer Nate 3,20}
{v) Pravisions for disputed statutary and other matters (Refer Note 3.22)

{vi) Allowances for expected credit losses (Refer Note 3.24. Xe})

(vii) Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Refer Note 3.24.1 and 3.24.2)
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6.1

Dr, Agarwal's Eye Haspital Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

RIGHT-QF-USE ASSETS

Amount in Rs. Crares)
Parti As at As at
articulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Carrying amounts of:
Right-af-use assets (Land) 114.86 119.12
Right-of-use assets {Buildings) S9.08 34.61
Total 173.92 153.73
Defails of movement in the carrying amaunts of right-of-use assets
{Amount in Rs. Crores}
Description of assets Land Ikirig: Total
| - Grass carrying value
As at T April 2021 - 52.74 52.74
Additiens 12113 287 124.00
Disposals / Adjustments during the year - N o
As at 31st March 2022 12113 55.61 176.74
As at 1 April 2022 121.12 55.61 176.73
Additions £ 34.32 34.82
Disposals / Adjustments during the year : (0.57) (0.57)
Asat 31st March 2023 121.12 89.86 210.98
. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at 1 April 2021 = I14.67 14.67
Charge far the year 2.02 £33 a.35
Disposals / Adjustments during the year - - -
As at 31st March 2022 2.02 21.00 23.02
As at 1 April 2022 202 21.00 23.02
Charge for the year 10.37 10.37
Transferred to CWIF 4.24 - 4.24
Disposals / Adjustments during the year . - (0.57) (0.57)
As at 31st March 2023 6.26 30.80 37.06
Net carrying value as at 31st March 2023 114.86 59.06 173.92
Net carrying value as at 31st March 2022 119.12 34.63 153.713




Or. Aganwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes farming part of the Finantial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

& INTANGIBLE ASSETS [Inctuding Goodwill)
{Amount in Rs. Crares)
Particulars i g
31st March 2023 335t March 2022
Carrying amaunts af:
Computer software @11 0.36
Goodwill a.18 0.18
Other intangible assets 0.85 1.11
Total 114 1.65
7.1 Details of in the ying ts of i ble assets
{Amount in #3. Crores|
Descriptian of Assets Cormputer Software Goodwill Qther intangible assets Total
| - Gross carrying vatug
As st 1 April 2021 6.18 6.18
Addltions 318 z 0.18
Additions through business cambination - Q.18 1.31 148
Dispasals / Adjustments during the year - - =
As at 31st March 2022 6.36 0.18 131 7.85
A5 at 1 April 2022 636 018 131 7.85
Additions 0.01 0.01
Additions through business combinatian -
Disposals / Adjustments duting the year - 1 — -
As at 31st March 2023 6837 0.18 131 7.86
II. Aceumuated amartization and Impairment
As at 1 April 2021 557 5.57
Charge for the y=sar 6.43 0.20 063
Disposals / Adjusiments during the year - -
As at 31st March 2022 5.00 = 0.20 6.20
As at 1 April 2022 500 = .20 6.20
Charge for the year 026 - 0.26 0.52
Disposals / Adjustments during the year 3
As at 31st March 2023 6.26 - 0.45 6.72
Net Carsying value as at 31st March 2023 0l 0.18 0.85 114
Net Carrylng value as at 31st March 2022 036 0.1 111 1.65
7.2 Breakup of Goodwill and Other intangible assets of Kallahurchi
{Amaunt in Rs, Crores)
|
i r relati i
Year of q Non compete Qustame _re ationzhip Gopdwill accounted on
L Particulars agreement [Other {Other intangible o .
acquisitien . business combinatian
intangible assets) assets}
2021-22 | On acquisitian of business 0.80 0.05 0,18




Dr. Agarwal’s Eye Hospital Limitad
Notes forming gart of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

& Other Financial Asset {Unsecured, considered good)

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

Asat
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2022

MNon-current, at amartised cast
{a) Rental Deposits

- Related perties [Refer Note 36) 0.36 0.36

- Others 571 5.83

[Bb) Security depasits 1.04 0.57
Total 7.11 6.76

o)

)

Cl =
nennaj | &
o

o

- 'Q\

\,
b




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospitat Limited
Mates forming part of the Financial Statements for the ¥ear Ended 31st March 2023

9 INCOME TAX
9.1 Non-cirrent 1ax assets

{Amount in Rs. Crores;
Asat Asat

Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022 |
fncome tax gayments made against returns filed /demands received lincluding taxes deducted at source} 4173 30.09
Less: Prawision for tax as carried far he respective years netted off against the payments made {4132) (28.87)
Tax ivable (net} .41 122
4.2 Income tax expense
[Amoent in Rs. Crores)
Particulars Farthe Year ended | For the Year endz2d

Jist March 2023 31st March 2022

44,1} Incame Tax recognised in statement of profit and Ioss

[i} Current Tax:
- in respect of current vear 12.33 8.21
-in respect of prior years | Refer Note 34 (iv}) - -
Total [A} 1733 8.21
{ii] Deterrad Tax:
- in respect of current year 0.15 0.00
Taotal (8] 0.15 0.00
Tetal incame tax expense recagnised in profit and loss account {A+B) £2.4B B.21

[A.2) Income tax recognised in other Comprehansiva income

Deferred tax ralated ta items recognised in other comprehensive incame during the year:
- Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 0.13 0.20

Total 0.13 0.20

Classification of income t2x recognised in other comprehenisive income
- Incore taxes related o ltems that will be reclassified to profit of loss = 73
- Income taxes related to itemns that will not be rech d to profit or loss 0.13 .20
Total 013 0.20

[A.3) Reconcitiation of incame tax cxpense and the accounting arafit rultiplied by Company's domestic tax rate:

Profit before tax 49.40 3231
Income Tax using the Campany’s domestic Tax rate 1243 813
Tax Effect of -

- Effett of expenses that are non-dedurtible in determining taxable profit G.05 008
Income Tax expense recognised in of profit or loss fram inui 12.48 8.21

The tax rate used far the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 reconcikiations abeve are the rorparate tax rale of 25.17% payzhle by carporate entibies in India an taxable profits
urder [ndian lncome Tax Laws.

10 DEFERAED TAXES
10.1 Deferred Tax Balances
(Amount in Rs. Crores)

PFarticulars el ’—— b
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Tha fellowing is the analysis of the net deferred tax asset/ (liability) position as presented in the financial statements
Deferted tax assets 9.71 9.74
Less: Deferved tax liabilities - -
Deferred tax asset - n=t 8.71

10.2 Movement in Deferred Tax Batances
(Amount in Rs. Crores)

Far the Year Ended 315t March 2023
Chargef[Cradit) recognised [n

Asat Other Asat
Partieufars Laprizozz | SAtementol [ ehangive | Do M ORRET | s March 202
Profit and Loss Equity
Income
Tax affect of items constituting {deferred tax liahilities)fdeferred tax assets
Property, plant and eduiptnent and Intappible assets 519 {LOT) - = 4,18
Financial assets at far value through profit & loss 0.16 0.03 # - 0.19
Employee Benefits 153 0.48 0.13 = 214
Provisions Q.95 0.10 = - 1.0%
Lease liabifities 191 0.24 : s 215
Met Tax Assat fiLiabilities] 974 [0.15) 013 & 9.1

Far the Year Endea 3]st March 2022
Chargef[¢redit) recognised in

Partirulars il Statement of S Disectly in Other s
1 April 2021 Comprehegsive N 3ist March 2022
Profit and Loss Equity
Income
Tax affect of items constituting |deferrad tax liabilities)/deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets s5es 0.14 = R 5.19%
Financial assets at fair value through profit & foss £.15 0.01 - & 016
Employee Renefits 116 017 G6.20 T 153
Provisions 0.62 033 4 095
Lease liabilities 256 {065} - 191

Nat Tax Asset f|Labilfties} 2.54 0.0 0.20 - 9.74




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 315t March 2023

11 OTHER ASSETS

[Amount in Rs. Crores]

Particulars

As at
31st March 2023

Asat
31st March 2022

Non-current
{i) Capital advances

- Towards construction of property n 4.53
- Others 0.88 1.08
Total 3.59 5.61
Current
[i) Prepaid expenses 0,17 0.52
[ii) Advances to suppliers 0.03 a.89
(i} Balances with government authorities 0.02 1.68
Total 0.22 3.04
12 INVENTORIES {at lower of cast and net realisable value}
{Amount in Rs. Crares)
Particulars — s
31st March 2023 315t March 2022
a) Traded goods
- Opticals 207 2.08
- Pharmaceutical products 1.50 1.4
- Contact lens and accessaries 091 0.39
(b} Susgical lens including other cansumablas (gaods held far use in rendering services) 1.52 212
Total 6.00 5.73
Notes:
(Amount In Rs. Cearas)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particuiars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
1.The cost of inventories recognised as an expenses during the year (Refer Notes 25,27 and 31 (b)) 60.96 46.64
2. The cost of inventaries recognised as 2n expense, inciudes write downs of [nventory to net realisable value, e BIE

amounting ta
3. The mode of valuation of inventories has been stated in Note 3.11




Or. Agarwal's Eye Haspital Limitad
Hotes farming part of the Financial Statemants for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

13 TRADE RECEIVABLES
{Amourt in Rs. Croras]
Asat Asat
31st March 2023 3Lst March 2022

Particulars

[2) Undisputed rade receivables -considesed good 1416 13.15
Allowance for doubtful debts - secured - constdered good {4.05) {3.48)

[b} Undisputed trade receivables -considered daubtful - -

[c} Disputed trade receivahles - considerad good

d] Disputed trade receivables -constdered doubtful £ -
Tatal ip.13 B.67

As at 3ist March 2023

Particulars More than 3
Less than 6 months 6 months - Tyear 1- Zyears 2-3years — Total

{a) Undisputed trade receivables -conslderad good 912 043 162 134 1.08 14.16
Allawanee for doubtful debts - secured - considared good jo.56} (0.34] {0.92) {1.20] [1.03) (4.05}
{b) Undisputed trade receivables - which have significantincrease in - - = =

aredit risk
(e} Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired % = " . =
(d) Disputed trade recewabies -considered good A E 2
(e) Disputed trade receivables -which have significant increase in - - - = = g
credi risk

uted trade receivahiss -credit impaired - = - B . &
Total B.63 0.59 Q.70 0,14 0.es 10.13

Asat 31st March 2022

LD Less than & months & manths - Lysar 1- Tyears 23 years Mo;:::n . Tatal
(a} UndE d trade ivabl idered good 7.58 151 158 132 0.1 i2.15
Allowante for daukbtful debts - secured - considered goed [0.67) (0.43) {0.91) {1.32) {0.16) {3.48)
() Undisputed trade receivables - which have significant increase in < : - 3
credit risg
{c) Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired
{d) Dispuied trade receivables -considered good 3 E
{e} Disputed trade recenmables -which have significant increase in
eredit risk

Disputed trede receivables -cred aired O - 2 = S
Total 6.91 1.08 0.65 0.01 (0.00) 8.67

13.1 Credit period and risk
Signifient partion of the Company's business is against receipt of advance Crad)t is provided mainly to Insurance Companies, Carporate and ¢ rovered by accorded

health benefits. The Insurance Companies are required to maintain mimimum reserve lavels and pre-approve the insurance claim, Government undertakings and the Corporate Customers are

enterprises with high aedit ratings. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to credit risk in relation to trade receivahles is lew.

Trade receivabies are non-intarest bearing and are genarally dve immediately when the Invoice is raised. Of the Trade Receivable as at 31 March 2023, Rs. 11.74 Crores [As at 31 March 2032; Rs. 8.8
erares) are due fram seven of the Company's customers i.e. having more than 5% of the total outstanding trade receivable balance. Thers are ne other customers who rapresent more than 5% of the
total balance of trade recelvables,

Na trade receivable are due from directars or ather oHicers of the Company aither severslly or jointly with any other person. Hor any trade receivable are due from firms or private companies
respectively In which aay directer Is a partner, a directar or 2 member.

13.2 Expected credit loss allowance
The Camparty has used a practical expedient by computing the expected loss allowsnce for trade receivatles based on provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account the histoncal credet loss
experience and adjustments for farward {ooking infarmatian. The expected credit loss allowance is based an the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates a5 given in the provision matr,
considering the amounts due from the government undertakings and the other undertakings.

The provision matrix at the end of the reporiing period {31 Maich 2023) is as follows:

Particuiars Fxpected Credit ioss {%)]
Less than 30 days past due 1% to 10%
91-180 days past due 18% o 36%
181-270 days past Sue 31% to 40%
271-360 days past due 36% to 56%
361-150 days past due A0% ta 100%
451-340 days past due 46% e 100%
541-630 days past due 60% to 100%
631-720 days past due 57% to 100%
721-81C days past dus T9% to 100%
More than 810 days past due 100%
133 in the all for deubtful ivables {i i cradit loss ]
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars 7022-23 2021-22
Balance at beginning of the year 348 216
Add: Provision Created during the vear 0.30 13z
tess : Provision utilised during the year {Bad debts written off) {0.23) -
in d cradit Inss an trade receivables ralculated at lifetima expected credit losses| 0.57 132
Batance at end of the year 4.05 3.48




0. Aganwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Yaar Ended 335t March 2633

14 CASH AND S8ANK BALANCES

14{a] ©ash and cash equivalents

Particulars Asat Rt
31st March 2023 31st March 2002
{a) €ash on hand 0.57 0.53
{b] Balances with banks
- In current accounts 16.79 15.08
- Fixed depasits with maturity less than 2 months 10.02 12.50
Total 21.38 238.11
14{b} Ctier bank balances
[Amecunt in Rs. Crares)
Particutars Asat Asat
3ist March 2093 31st March 2022
{a} In fixed deposits
- Under lien [Refer Note {i] below) 0.64 061
ib} In earmarked accounts
- Unpaid dividend accounts 0.08 0.08
Total 0.72 0.69

Note:
{i) Depostt under Lien represents deposits placed for Bank Guaranteas {maturity of fess than 12 manths)
obtained by the Company from Banks tawards:

- Central Government Heaith Scheme {CGHS) 013 [+Eal:]
- Ex-Sepneemen Contribulory Health Scheme (ECHS) Q19 Q.49
- Sauthern Railways o.05 0.08
-ICF o.02 oo
- Natianal Savings Certificate .00 .00
- Rajasthan Commercial Tax D24 0.24
- North Western Rallways no1 .00
Tatal 0.64 0.61

15 DFTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
{Unsecurad, considered good)

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars Asat Asat

31st March 2023 31st March 2022

{a] Rental deposits 1.E3 107

{b) Interest accrued bui not due on fixed deposits - Q.00

{b) Advances to ampioyees 0.03 013
{c) Others

- Receivable from related parties [Refer Note 26.4) .25 242

- Receivabla fram bank (Refer Noie [I] below) = 0.14

Total 211 3.76




Br. Aparwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 3ist March 2023

16 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

As at Asat
Particutars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Number of shares Rs. in Crores Number of shares Rs. in Crores
Authorised share tapital :
20,000,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 20,000,600 20.00 20,900,000 20.00
Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
4,700,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each 4,700,000 470 4,760,000 4.70
Total 4.70 4.70
16.1 Reconciliation of the mumber of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting periad:
As at As at
Particulars 315t March 2023 3lst BMarch 2072

Number of shares ‘ Rs. in Crores

Shares outstanding as at the baginning of the year
Add: Fresh issue of shares during the year

Less: Buy-back of shares during the year

Shares autstanding as ot the end of the year

4,700,000

4,700,000

Blumber of shares Rs, in Crares

4,700,000 410

4,700,060 4.70

16.2 Terms / rights attached to equity shaves :

16.3

[Details of shares held hy Br. Agarwai's Health Care Limited (Holding Company)

Class of Shares

Numhber af Shares | Number of Shates

Asat 3Ist March | Asat 31st March

The Company has anly ane class of equity sharas having a par value of Rs. 10. £ach holder is emtitled to one vote per equity share. Dividends are paid in Indian rupees.
Dividend proposed by the Baard of Diractors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting except in case of interim dividend.
Repayment of capital will be in accardance with the terms of the Articles of Assoclation and in propartion to the number of squity shares held.

2023 2022

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,372,408 3,372,408
16.4 Detalls of shares held by each shareholdsr holding mare than 5% shares
As at Asat
31st March 2023 31st parch 2022
Class of Shares
Number of Shares % halding of Kumber af Sharas % holding of

held equity shares hetd equity shares
Eguity shares
Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited 3,372,408 7175 3,372,408 7175

immediately preceding 31 March 2023,

16.6 Details of shares held by the pramaters

16.5 There were no shares issued pursuant ta contract without payment being received in cash, aliotted as fully paid up by way of honus 1ssues or brought back during the last five years

% of total
No. of Shares As at No. of Shares As at % ehange during the
P L shares
romaters name 315t March 2023 315t harch 2022 | O total shares year

DOr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited 3,372,408 71.75% 3,372,408 71.75% 0.00%
Dr Sunita Agarwal 6,663 0.14% 18,662 0.40% -0.26%
Panke) Sondhy 100 0.00% 100 0.00% 0.003%
Total 3,379,171 71.90% 3,391,170 32.15% -0.26%




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Motes forming past of the Financiak 5t for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

17 OTHER EQUITY
{Ampunt in Rs. Crores}

Particulars Note As at Asat
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
General reserve 171 0.83 0.83
Securities prermium 17.2 5.51 5.51
Retained earnings 17.3 102.30 57.13
Total 108.64 73.47
17.1 General reserve
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars Adiat Asat
31st March 2023 315t March 2022
Opening Balance 0.83 0.83
Add: Transferred from surplus Tn statement of profit and ioss - -
Closing balance 0.83 .83

The general reserve represents appropriation of retzined earnings by transferting profits. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of
equity to anather and is not an tem of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will nat ke reclassified subsequently ta profit or foss.

17.2 Securities premiwm
{Amgunt in Rs. Crores)

Particulars Asat Asat
315t March 2023 31st March 2022
Opening balance 551 551
Add : Premium on shares issued during the year = k-
Closing balance 5.51 5.51

NoLe - Amaunts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securities premium.

17.3 Retained earnings*
[Ampunt in Rs. Crores)
o Asat As at
Eartiouirs 31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Opening Balance 67.13 43.62
Adjusstments
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 26.92 24.10
Other comprehensive lnss {Refer Note below} (0.35) (0.59)
Dividends distributed to equity sharehalders - Rs.3 par share {1.41) E
Closing Balance 102.30 67.13

* Retained earnings comprise of the Company's undistributed earnings after taxes.

Nate:-

{i} In aceordance with Notification 6.5.8 404{E ), dated & April 2018, remeasurement of defined benefit plans is recognised as part aof retained earnings.

{ii} In respect of the year ended 31 March 2023, the directors propose that a dividend of Rs. 3 per share to he paid on fully paid equity shares. This equity
dividend is subject to approval by sharehalders at the annual general meeting and has not been included as a liability in these financial statements. The
propesad equity dividend is payable to all holders of fuily pald squity shares

o Ey s
\ \'/ b C{S\
- o,
Chennai

-
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Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Nates forming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

i8

18.1

NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS
[Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars B LEEE
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Borrowings measured at amortized cost:
Secured barrowings : term |oans {Refer Note (18.7i) below)
- From banks 35,77 20,71
35.77 20.71
Details of Term Loan from Banks / Others - Secured
The details of tenar, interest rate, repayment terms of the same are given below:
Loan Amount Loan Amount
Original Tenor No. of Instalments As at As at
S.Np. (i: Months) Interest Rate outstanding as at  |Repayment Terms| 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
31 March 2023 Amount In Amount in
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
{- Term Loans fram Axis Bank {Refer Note {i), (i) below)
1 7 Repo + 3.5% 0 Principal Monthly, - 026
Interest Monthly
2 20 Repo +3.5% 7 Principal Manthly, 227 6.78
Interest Manthly
3 120 Repa +3.5% 96 Principal Monthly, 35.82 15.73
Intesest Monthly
Sub-Total 38.02 2277
Il - GECL Loan from Axis Bank [Refer Note {ii} below)
1 30 Repo + 3.5% 17 Principal Monthly, 1.67 3.00
Interast Manthly
Sub-Total 1.67 3.00
11l - Vehicle Loans from Axis Bank (Refer Note {iv) below]
1 &0 9% 14 Principal Monthly, 0.13 0.23
Interest Monthly
Sub-Total 0.13 2.23
Total of borrowings frorm 8anks 39.89 26.00
Less : Current Maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer Note 21) [4.12) (5.28)
Long-term Borrowings from Banks 35.77 20.71
Nofes:

i} The details of Security provided against the Term Loans are as follows:
- First and exclusive charge cn the entire current assets of the Company.
- First and exclusive charge on the Plant and Machinery owned by the company other than those funded by other banks.
- Pledge of 1,350,000 Shares of the Company held by Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited.
- Corporate Guarantee pravided by Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited.
- Personal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Or. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal,
Dr. Ashvin Agarwal, being the premoter and relatives of the pramoter.

(i) The Government of india under "Emergency Credit Line Guaranteed Scheme (ECLGS) has directed the banks to provide
Guaranteed emergency Credit Line {GECL) by way of working capital term loan (WCTL) . This facility is covered by 100% guarantee
from NCGTC (National Credit Guarantee Trustee Campany Ltd - Ministry of Finance). The amount sanctioned is INR 3.52 Crore with
a moratorium period of 12 months, further Security provided against GECL joan are as follows:

- Personal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal,
Dr. Ashvin Agarwal, and Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited .

fiii} As at the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company had borrowed term loan from Axis 8ank Limited for construction of New
Chennai Main Hospital {CMH). Of the sanction amount of INR 60 Crores, the campany has utifised INR 35.81 Crores.
The security against which is listed below

- Equitable Mortgage on the Land belonging to Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute, a related party, for 6,555 Ground,

- Equitable Mortgage on the Land belonging to Dr. Agarwal's Eve Institute, arelated party, for 3.125 Ground on second
charge basis, whereas the first charge will be by Axis Finance Limited,

- Equitable Martgage on Building proposed to be constructed an the entire land of 9.68 grounds at cathedral road Chennai.
{iv) The loans are secured by hypethecation of respective vehicles financad by the Banks.
{v} The Company has obtained a written acknowledgement from the Bark that there were no non compliances with the loan
terms and conditions as at 31 March 2023.




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes farming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

19 PROVISIONS

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2022

Non-current

{aj Pravision for Tmployee Benefils:

- Gratuity {Refer Note 35.3(b}) 4.64 3.53

- Compensated Absences (Refer Note 35.2) 1.56 1.13
Total Non-current 6.20 4.66
Current
{a) Provision for Employee Benefits:

- Compensated Absences (Refer Note 35.2) 0.77 0.56
(k) Provision for Contingencies {Refer Note 19.1) 0.27 0.27
Total Current 1.04 0.83

19.1 The Company carries a 'provision for contingencies’ towards various claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts {Refer

Note 34), based on Management’s best estimate. The details are as follows:

{Amount in Rs. Crores}

Particulars Asat A
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Opening Balance 0.27 048
Provision made during the year = 0.0g
Amounts Utilised during the vear - -
Upused Amounts Reversed during the year - z
Closing Balance 0.27 0.27

MNote:

Whilst the provision as at 31 March 2023 is considered as short term in nature, the actual outflow with regard to said matters
depends on the exhaustion of remedies availahle under the law based on various developments. Ne recoveries are expected

against the provision.

20 OTHER LIABILITIES

{Amount in Rs, Crores)

. As at Asat
Particulars

31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Current
{a} Statutory Remittances 1.99 1.84
{b) Advances frem Customers 1.08 0.97
{c}) Gratuity Payable (Refer Note 35.3(b)} 1.03 0.85
Total current liabilities 4.10 3.66

%k (\\
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Dr. Agarvais Eye Hospita Limited
Hates ferming part of the Finarclal for the Year Ended 315t March 2023

21 CURAENT BORROWINGS
{Amaurd in fs. Crores)

Particulsrs Lol e
| 31itMarch 2023 31st March 2022
T
{a} Loans Repayable on Damand
il From Banks - Secured
[ Cash Credit Faciity {Refer Note (i) & (i) E 304
- Overdrakt faciity [Reler Mote (i) & {hi)} | 394 300
) Current Maturties of Long-Teom Borrawings
from Banks - Sgcared (Refer Mote 58.1] | 412 529
Total 8.06 11.23
Naotes

i) The details of interest rate, repayment and other termes of the Short Term Borrowings are 2s follows:
(Amount in Rs. Crarzs)

s at Asat
Type he 8 It
Yo Name of the Party nlerest Rate RepaymemtTarms | o 2023 214t March 2022
Lauh Credud facility frgm HIEC Bank HIDEC TMCLR + D.80% On Demand - 234
Overdralt fatlity from Axis Bank frcis Aepa +3.5% _On Demand EX) 300

[ii} The Cash eradit faciity availed by the Company as at 31 March 2073 & 31 March 2022 & secured by the follawing:
Fire1 and exclusve charge on the entire current assets of the Company.
First and exclustve chatge on the Plant and Machinery owned by the company other than those funded by other banks
- Plecge of 1,350,000 shares of the Company held by Dr. Agarwal's Health Care timied
- Corporate Guarantee provides by Di. Agarwal's Heakth Cars Limited and Dr. Agarwal's Eye |nsteuie
- Parsonal Guarantees of Dr, Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr, Adil Agarwal, Or. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal and Or. Ashwin Agarwal being the
promaker and relatives of the prametet,
{I] The Overdraft facility availed by the Company as at 31 March 2023 Is secured by the faltowling:
Pan- passu charge with Aais Bank Limrted on the landed propeny of 8 63 Graunds balonging to O Agarwal's Eye institute, 2 related pary and preposed building tobe
constructed thete at Cathedral road | Chennan.

22 TRADE PAYABLES
(Amount b Rs. Grores)

Sartculars 1 st i
| 315t March 2023 315t March 2022
| |
- Dues of Micro Enterpfises and Small Enrerprises {Refer Nate 32] ‘ 228 | 193
- Dues of Crediters Other than Mcra Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Refer Mote 36 4) 2241 | 2374
| Disputed dues of Micra Emterprses and Small Enterprises (Refer Kote 37) | |
‘ Eusputed dues of Credrtors Glher than ficre Enterprses and Small Enterprses |
| Tazal | 26.69 2567
As at 31st March 2023
T Particelars Not Due Less than 1 year | 1-2 years | 23 Years More than 3 Years Total
I T
| - MSME - 128 | 228
Others 18.36 474 030 | oz o3l 254
Disputed duss - MSME
- Disputed dues - Others
[ratal 18.86 1.02 0.30 | 0.20 | 031 26.69
A3 at 315t March 2022
i Particulars Not Due Less then 1 year 12 years [ 23Years | Marethend Years Totat
- MshE - 193 ‘ - | 193
Dthers 1781 542 0.20 a3 | 2374
- Dreputed dues - MSME
| - Dusputed duss - Others i | | =
{Total N 17.81 7.35 020 | 031 - 67
23 OTHER ANANCIAL UASILITIES
(Amaunt in Rs. Crores]
T
Particulart Jeay s
3151 March 2023 31st March 2022
Non-Current Fabilities
iMeasured at Falr Value
*{a} Acquisinon Lisbilities (Alsa refer Note 5 £ 7.2) 0.48 030
|lb) Cahers 110
Total ) 1.58 a0
Current liobilities
Measured al Amortized gast |
(a} Payables Lawards purchase of Property, Plant znd Equipment 400 582
[b) Interest Aecruad an Barrowings
fram Banks But et due on 002 | 053
(£} Unpabd Dividends 208 aog
Measured at fair Valie
(3} Acquisition Lizbilities {Alkso reler MNote 5 & 7.2 | ads o4z
Totai I 452 6.85
Pote: Acquisition Liabifities reprasents Ihe estymated far valoe of the contingent consideration refating La the sequisiizn of variows eye dinies which was acquired up to 31
March 2023.




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

24 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particaiars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31ist March 2023 31st March 2022
{a) Sale of Products (Refer Note 24.1 (i) below) 6530 48.89
{b) Sale of Services {Refar Note 24.1 (i) belaw) 201.93 152.07
{c} Other Operating Revenues 0.66 0.25
Total 267.89 201.21
24.1 Disaggregation of the revenue Information
The tables befow presents disagaregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended 31 March 2023. The Company believes that this
disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other
economic factors.
(i) Sale of Products cormprises the folfowing: {Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
315t March 2023 31st March 2022
Traded Goods : '
(1) Opticals 42.16 31.50
(1) Pharmaceutical Praducts 2107 15.47
{ili} Contact Lens and Accassories 157 1.09
{iv) 5ale of Food Items 0.50 043
Total - Sale of Products 65.30 48.89
{ii) Sale of Services comprises the following :
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
PartiEalars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
e 31t March 2023 215t March 2022
{i} Income from Surgeries 166.38 114.03
{ii} Income from Consuitation 11.85 2313
{iii} Income from Treatments and [nvestigations 2370 1491
Total - Sale of Services 201.93 152.07
The services are rendered to various patients and there are no patients whe represent more than 10% of the fotal revenue. However, the Hospital also serves
patients wha are covered under insurance/health schemes run by insurance companies, corporates znd the central/state government agencies, wherein the
services rendered to the patient is on credit to be reimbursed by the said insurance company, carporate or government agency.
24,2 Trade Receivables and Contract Balances
The company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as receivable.
A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upen passage of time. Revenue is recogrized as and when the related goods [ services are delivered
/ perfermed to the customer.
Trade receivable are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.
Centract liabilities include payments received in advance of perfarmance under the contract, and are realized with the associated revenue recognized under
the contract,
24.3 Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations
‘The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as at the end of the reporting
periad and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise these amounts in revenue. Apalying the practical expadient as given  IND AS - 115,
the Company has not disclesed information abeut remaining performance abligations in contracts wheare the original contract duration is ane year or less or
where the entity has the right to consideration that correspands directly with the value of entity’s performance completed to date.
25  OTHERINCOME
[Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars For the Year Endad For the Year Ended
315t March 2023 31st March 2022
{a) Interest income - Bank Deposits 0.20 0.14
(b Interest income - Other Financial Asset at amortised cost 0.58 0.38
{¢) Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 0.03 0.22
{d) Income from Business Support Services (Refer Note 36.2) - nz3
(e} Miscellaneous income 0.95 0.27
Total 176 1.26




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

26 PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

{Amount in Rs. Crores}

Far the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

P I

articulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
{a) Opticals 15.41 12.15
() Pharmaceuticals Products 13.38 10.32
(e} Contact Lens and Accessories 1.51 0.87
(d) Provisions - Food ltems 0.40 0.33
Total 30.68 23.67

27  CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK IN TRADE
A. Inventories at the beginning of the year: {Amount in Rs. Crores}

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

(2) Opticals 208 151
[b) Pharmaceuticals Products 114 1.09
(e} Contact Lens and Acressories 0.39 0.20
Total {A) 3.61 2.80

B. Inventaries at the end of the year:

{Amount in Rs., Crores)

PGS For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
{a) Opticals 2.07 2.08
{k) Pharmaceuticals Products 1.50 1.14
{c) Contaek Lans and Accessories 0.51 0.3%
Total {B) 4.48 3.61
Total (A} - (B) (0.87) {0.81)

28  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Net of recoveries)

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Pt teulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31st March 2023 315t March 2022
{a) Salaries and Banus 4746 34.87
{b) Contributions to Provident and Other Funds {Refer Nota 35) 3.20 247
[c) Staff Welfare Expenses 1.64 117
{d) Employee stock option expenses (Refer Note 41.4} 0.96 -
Total £3.26 3851

Note - Salaries and Bonus is after netting of cross charge expenses charged to Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited of Rs.1.12 crores. (Refer Note 36.2)

29  FINANCE COSTS {Net of recoveries)

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Particulars 315t March 2023 315t March 2022
{a) Interest on Loan
{i) On Term Loans 0.95% 152
(ii} On Others 0.34 0.27
(b} Other Borrowing Costs - Corporate Guarantee charges [Refer Note 36.2) - 0.11
(e} Interest on Lease Liability {Refer Note 38) 5.58 4.33
Total 6.87 6.23

Note - Interest on others inciudes an amount of Rs.0.07 crores against the corporate guarantee charges which is payable to Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited.
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Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

30 DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION
{Armount In Rs. Crores)
particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
315t March 2023 31st March 2022
{2} Depreciation on property, plant and equipment { Refer Note 5) 9.29 11.42
[b) Depreciation on right-of-use assets (Refer Note 6 & 38) 10.37 8135
(¢} Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 7) 0.52 0.62
Total 20.18 20.39
31 OTHER EXPENSES {Net of recoveries)

311

{Amount in Rs. Crores}

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Particulars 215t March 2023 315t March 2022
(a) Consultancy Charges 38.55 28.60
{b) Surgical lens including other consumables 3115 23.78
(c} Power and Fuel 3.29 2.53
(d) Water Consumption 0,11 0.13
(e) Rent {Refer Note 36.2 & Note 38) 322 2.89
(f) Repairs & Maintenance
- Equipments 193 1.48
- Others 292 2.08
{g) Hospital Maintenance Charges 5.02 3.87
{h] Brokerage and Commission - -
{i] Insurance 0.10 0.10
{j} Rates and Taxes {0.05) 0.21
{k) Communication 0.2 0.85
{l) Travelling and Conveyance 358 1.85
{m) Printing and Stationery 1.24 0.87
in) Legal and Professional Charges 219 1.75
{o) Software Maintenance Charges 162 0.90
{p) Business Promaticn and Entertainment 282 1.50
{a) Marketing Expenses 7.41 423
{r) Payments to Auditors {Refer Note 31.1 befow) 048 0.38
(s Bank Charges 117 098
{t} Net Loss on Fareign Currency Transactions and Translation 211 0.0t
{u) Expenditure on Corporate Sacial Respansibility {C5R) {Refer Note 31,2 below) .43 0.29
{v) Allowance far Expected Credit Losses {Refer Note 13.3) 0.80 1.32
Less:
Bad debts written off 0.24 =
{Release of nrovisicn) (024} 2
0.80 1.32
{w] Miscellaneaus Expenses 112 1.56
Total 110.13 82.17

NMate :- Repairs and maintanance and Software maintenance charges is after netting of cross charge expenses to Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited of Rs.0.41 crores and

Rs.0.70 crores.

Payments to the Auditors Comprises :

{Amount in Rs. Crores}

Particulars

Far the Year Ended
31st March 2023

For the Year Ended
3ist March 2022

As Auditors:

- For Statutory Audit and Limited Review D.40 0.34
- Goods and Service Tax 0.07 0.05
- Reimhursement of Fxpenses 0.01 0.00
Total 0.48 0.33




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Staterments for the Year Ended 31t March 2023

31.2 Details of Corparate Soctal Responsibility expenditure

The Company identifies and incurs expenses towards Corporate Social Responsibility {'CSR'), in accordance with s CSR Policy in compliance of Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant schedule and rules made thereunder. The necessary disclosures are as helow:

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

- Fram Separate C5R unspent account

Closing balance

With company

in separate CSR unspent A/c

- Shaortfall at the end of the year {if any)

Total of previous year

Remarks {To detail the reason for the shortfall if any)

- Details of related party transactions, e.g, contribution to a trust controlied by the company in relation to
CSR exp.

- Provision for the year (where provision is made wrt 2 liability incurred by entering into a contractual
obligation, the movements in the provision during the year should be shown separately}

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
1
= 31st March 2023 315t March 2022
{i] Gross amount required ta be spent by the Company during the year 0.43 Q.29
[Determined in accordance with the noatification as issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs]
(i) Amount spent during the financial year
a) Canstructian or acquisition of any asset - -
b} On purpose other than [a) above
- Paid 043 028
- Yet to he Paid - 0.01
As at 31st March 2023
Particulars Project / NGO Amount
Opening Balance
- With company - -
i) Health care services .18
it} Promuotion of education 011
- In separate CSR unspent Afc
Arnount Required to be spent by the company during the year
Amount Spent
- From Company's bank account = -
i) Health care services 0.24 0.18
i) Promation of education 0.19 0.11




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Motes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

32 Disclosuzes required under Section 22 of the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Developrient Act, 2006

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars*

2022-23

2023-22

(i) Principal amaount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the and of the accounting year

{ii)  Interest due thereon ramaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year {included in
Trade Payables}

{iil The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made fo the supplier beyond the

appointed day

{iv] The amount of interast due and payable for the year

fv] The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year

{vi} The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid

2.28

0.ic

0.10
c.io

no1

133

0.09

0.09
0.09

001

*Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the

hanagemeant,

33 Capital Commitments

{Amcunt in Rs. Crores)

Particulars Asat As at
33ist March 2023 31st March 2022
{i) The estimated amaount of contracts remaining to be exacuted on Capital Account, net of advances and not
provided for
- Towards canstruction of Cathedral Road premises 2617 4.53
- Others 0.27 046
Total 36.44 4.98
34 Contingent Liabilities
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
Asat Asat
Particulars
31st March 2023 3ast March 2022
Consumer Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt 2.08 167

Notes:

(i} Based on Professional Advice / Management's assessment of all the above claims, the Company expects 2 favourable decisian in respect of the above claims

and hence no specific provision has been tonsiderad for the above claims. Also refer Note 19.1.

{if] The amounts shown above represent the hest possible estimates arrived at on the basis of the available information. The uncertainties and possible
reimbursement are dependent on the outcome of the varlous legal proceedings which have been inftiated by the Campany or the Claimants, as the case may be

and, therefore, cannot be predicted accurately.

&
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De. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
MNates forming part of the Financial Statements Eor the Year Ended 3Est March 2023

35 Empleyee Benefits

35.1 Defined Contribution plans

{a} The Company makes Provident and Pension Fund centributions, which is a defined contribution plan, fer qualifying employees. Additionally, the
Campany alsa provides, far cavered employees, health msurance through the Emalovee State Insurance scheme. Under the Schemes, the Company is
requlred to contrlbute a specified percantage af the payrall costs to fund the benefits, The contributians payable ta these plans by the Company are at
rates specified it the rules of the schemes.

{b) Expenses recopnised :

{Amaunt in Rs. Crores}

Far the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
3ist March 2013 31st March 2022

Farticulars

fil  Included under 'Contributians to Provident and Other Funds {Refer Note 28}

Contributions to provident and pension funds 2.08 1.60
fii) Included under 'Staff Welfare Expenses [Refer Note 28)
Contributions to Ermplayee State Insurance 0.26 0.35

25.2 Compensated Absences
{Amount in Rs, Crores)
For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended

Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
fa} Included under ' Salaries and Bonus ' {Refer Note 28) 0.4 0.35
{Amount in As. Crores}
| . for the Year Ended | Fof the Year Ended
Particylars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
bl Net assed / [liability] recagnised in the Balance Sheet {2.33) {1,700
Current portian of the abave (0.77) (0.58)
Nan - current portion of the above {1.56) 1.13)
The Key Assumptrons used in the cor ian of provision for <ol ted absences are as given helow:
Particulars 2022-2023 2021-2012
Discount Rate (% p.a) 7.30% 6.10%%)
Salary growth rate (% p.a) 10.00%) 10.008%)
Withdrawal rate [% p.a) 22% at zll ages 22% at all ages)

35.3 Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering gualifying employeas. The benefit pavable is caltulated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and the
benefit vests Lpon completion of five years of centinuous service and once vested it is payable Lo emplayees on retirement or on termination of
employmaent. In case of death or disabilily while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective af vesting. The Campany makes anbual contribution to the
group gratuity schame administered by the Life Insurance Corparation of india.

In respest of the plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assess and the present value of the defined benzfit obligation were carried out as at
31 March 2023 by Kepadia Actuaries & Consultants, Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined henefit ablization, ang
the related current service cost and paid service cast, ware measured using the projected unit credit method.

fa) Amount recognised in the statement of profit & toss {including athee comprehensive income} in respect of the defined beneflt plan are as follaws :

{Amount in Rs. Crores)
For the Year Ended | Far the Year Ended
31st March 2022 31st March 3027

Particulars

Amaunts recopnised in Statement of Profit & Loss in respect n‘f these defined henefit plans are as
Service Cost jRefer Note(i] below] :

- Current Service Cast 0.28 0.68
- Net interest expense 0.24 0.16
Components of defined berefit costs recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 112 0.E4

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:

Return on plan assets {excluding amount Included in net interest expense) 0.04 (0.02}
Actuarial gains and loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.13 .19
Actuarial gains and [oss arising from changes in demographic assumptions - 0.09
Actuarial gains and loss arising fram experlence adjustments 0.31 053
Components of defined benefit costs ised In other } incame 0.48 0.79
Total defined henefit cost recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Incame 1.69 3.63

(i} The current service cost and intersst expense far the year are included in Note 28 - "Employee Benefit Expenses” fn the statement of profit & loss
under the line item “Cantribution to Provident and Other Funds”

(it} The remeasurament of the net defined benefit liability is incduded in other comprehensive income.




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Haspital Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

{b) The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of defined benefit plan isas follows :
{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Asat Asat
Particulars 31stMarch2023 | 31t March 2022
Net Asset/{Liability} recoguised in the Balance Sheat
1_Present value of defined benefit ohligation 7.97 6.65]
2. Fairvalue of plan assets (2.30) 238
Net asset / {liabi#lity) recagnised in the Balance Sheet 5.67 (4.37)
Current partian of the sbove 103 L
Nan - current portion of the above 4.64 53

{£) Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :

{Amount in Rs, Crores)
nded | For the Year Ended

For the Year E

Particulars
31st March 2023 315t March 2022
Present value of defined benefit chligation at the beginning of the year £.65 521
Expenses Recognisad in Statement of Profit and Loss:
- Current Service Cost 088 0.68
- Intevest Expansa (Income} 035 .23

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:
Remeasurement gains / {lasses)
- Actuarlal Gain [Loss) arising from:

i. Demaographic Asstmptions = 0.0

i, Financial Assumptions 0.13 019

fii. Experience Adjustments 0.30 054

Berefit payments (0.34} (0.29
Present value of defined henefit obligation at the end of the year 797 6.55

{d] Movement in fair vslue of plan assets are as follows :
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
For the ¥ear Ended | For the Year Ended

Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Fair value of plan assets at the beginring of the year 228 185
Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Lass:
- Expected return on plan assets 011 0.07
d in Other Comprehensive lncome:

Rameasurement gains { (losses}
- Actuaria! gains and loss arising fram changes in financial assumptlans - -
- Return on plan assets {excluding amount inglided in net interest expense) (0.04) 0.2

Cantributions by employer 0.30 053
Benefit payments {0.35) [6.29)
value of plan #ssets at the end of the year 2.30 2.28

{e) The fatr value af plan assets plan atthe end of the reporting periad are as follows:

{Amount in Rs. Ceores}

p For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Investment Funds with Insurance Company
- life Insurance Corporation of India 2.30 228

(i} The plan assets comprise insurer managed funds. None of the assets carry a quated market price in active market ar represent the entity's own
transferable financial instruments ar property accupied by the entity.

{f} The Actual return i plan asset for the year ended 31 March 2023 was Rs. 0,07 rrores { For the year anded - 31 March 2022: Rs. 0.09 crores).

{2} Actuarial assumptions

Investetent Ri:
The presant value of defined benefit plan liahility is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference 1o the prevailing market vields of
Indian government securities as at the balance shest date for the astiratad term of the obligations.

Interest Risk:

A decrease in the yield of Indian government securities wil inerease the plan rability.

Longevity Risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liabillty is calcutatad by referance o the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during
and after their employrient. An increase [n the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liabikity.

Salary Risk:
The present valie of the defined benefit plan liebility is calculated by referenca ta the future salaries. In particular, thereis a risk for the Company that
any adverse salary growth can result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits ta employees in future

oh
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Or. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited

Motes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 315t March 2023

The principal assumptions vsed for the purpose of actuarial valuation werse as Tallows :

Particulars For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
31st Mareh 2023 31st March 2022
Discount rate 7.30% 6.10%
Expectad rate of salary increase 10.00% B.00%
Expected return on pian assets 73054 6.10%
Expected Attrition rate based an Past Service {PS) (% p.a) 22% 22%
Mortality Indian Assured Lives | Indian Assured Lives
- (2012-2014) (2012-2014}

1. The discount rate s based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as al balance sheet date for the estimated term of the
chligation.
2. The estimates of future salary increases copsidered takes into account the inflation, seniority, pramotion and other relevant factors.

3. In arder to protect the capital and optimize returns within acceptable risk parametars, the plan assets are maintained with an insurer managed fund
{maintained by the Life Insurance Corporation {"LIC")) and is well diverse.

Sens Anal
The berefit abligation results of a such a scheme are particulasly sensitive to discount rate, langevity risk, salary growth and employee attrition, If the
plan pravision do provide for such increases on commencernent of pension.

Tha following table summarizes the impact in financial terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reparting perind artsing on
account changes in these four key paramelers:

(Amuount in Rs. Crores)
o for the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
Impact on the Defined benefit Obligation 315t March 2023 21st March 2022

(i) Discount Rate
{ncrease by 50 bps 7.83 542
Dacrease by S0 bps 811 6.90

(il Salary growth rate

Increase by 50 bps 3.09 686
Decrease by 50 bps 7.85 6.45

{il]] Attrition rate
Increase by 100 bps 7.90 6.64
Decrease by 100 bps —_—— 8.05 6.66

These sensitivitles have been calrviated to show the movement In defined benefit obligatian in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in
market conditians at the accounting date. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined
benefit abligations as jt is unlikely that the change in assumptions would accur in isclation of one another as some of the assumptions may he
corralated.

Furthermore in presenting the ebove sensitivity analysis the present vafue of defined benefit obiigation has been calculated using the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined bensfit obligatton liability recogmsed in
the balance sheet

{h] Asser Lizkility Matching Strategies
The Company has purchased insurance palicy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared an yearly
basis and is guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance Company, as part of the palicy rules, makes payment of all gratuity Eability aceurring
during the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the pelicy). The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being 2 cash accumulation
plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the duratisn of liabilities. Thus, the Company s exposed to movernent in interest rate {in particular,
the significant fall in interest rates, which should resuit in a increase in ability without corresponding increase in the asset).

Effect of Plan on Entity’s Fiture Cash Flows

al Funding Arrangements and Funding Policy

The Company has purchased an insurance policy to pravide for payment of gratuity to the employees, Every year, the insurance Compahy carries out a
funding valuation hased on the latest employee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in the assets arising as a result of such valuavon is funded
by the Campany.

b} The Company expects to make a contribution of INR 1.02 crores during the next financial year.

) The weighted average duration of the benefit cbligatien as at 31 March 2023 is 3.86 years |as at 31 March 2022 is 3.86 years}

d) Maturity profile of gafined benefit ohligation:

Expected rash Hows aver the next {valued on undiscounted basis)

{Amount in Rs, Crares]

Within 1 year 237

2 ta 5 years 4.25

G ta 10 years 274

mare than 10 years E:

(i} Experience Adjustments®
(Armaount in Rs. Crores)
Partlcalars 2022-23 2021-22 | 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19

Defined Benefit Oblisati 7.96] B, 5.21 4.87 4.11
Plan Assets 2.30; 2.28) 1,95 1.75) 154
Surplus / [Deficit] 566 .37 (3.27 3.09 258
Exnerlence Adlustments an Plap Liahilities 0. H 0.54 0A0§1 0.13
E on Plan Assats = -

“Experience adJustments refated to prior years have been disclosed based on the information to the extent availabie.
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35 Related Party Disclosure

36,1 Names of Related Parties and Nature of Relationships

Mature of Relationship 2022-2023 2021-2022

(i)

Holding Company

Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited {4HCL)

Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited {AHCL)

i

Fellow Subsidiarfes

Orbit Healthcare Services {Mauritius) Limited

Orhit Healthcare Services {Mauritius) Limfted

Qrbit Healthcare Services International Operations Limited
{Merged with OHCL w.e.f. 01 April 2022]

Orbit Healtheare Services Internatiznal Operations Limited

Orbit Health care services (Tanzania) Limited

Orbit Health care services [Tanzanla) Limited

Orbit Healthcare Services Limited, Rwanda

QOrbit Healthcare Services Limited, Rwanda

Crbit Healthcare Services Ghana Limited

Orhit Healtheare Services Ghana Limited

Orbit Healthcare Services Mozambique Limited

Orbit Healthcare Services Mozambique Limited

Orhit Healtbeare Services SARL, Mad T

QOrhit Healthcare Sarvices SARL, Madagascar

Orbit Healthcare Services Uganda Limited

Orbit Healthcare Services Uganda Limited

Qrhit Healthcare Services Zambia Limitad

Orbit Healthcare Services Zambia Limited

Orhit Thefish Healthcare Services {Nigeria} Limited
{up to 31 july 2022)

QOrbit Thelish Healthcare Services (Nigeria) Limited

Orhit Healtheare Services Kenya Limited

Orbit Healthcare Services Kenya Limited

Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited

Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited {w.e.f 0B Octoher 2021)

Advance Eye [nstitute Private Limited [ Merged with AHCL
w.e.f 01 November 2021)

Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited

Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited

{iif)

Associate  entities  of the
Holding Company

IdezRx Services Private Limited

IdeaRx Services Private Limited

Entities with significant

Value Growth Investment Holdings PTE Ltd
[up to 05 May 2022)

Value Growth Investment Haldings PTE Ltd

Claymore Investments {Mauritius) Pte. Ltd

Claymore Investments (Mauritius) Pte. Ltd

the Campany and the Holding
Company

[iv} influence over the Holding
Compan
Heny Hyperion Investments Pte. Ltd {w.e.f 05 May 2023} .
Arvon Investments Pte. =
{v) Enterprise over which the Kev |or Agarwal's Eye institute Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute
Management Parsonnel [of the i " " .
0 i 5 i Dr, Agarwal's Eye Institute Private Limited
Company and the Holding Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute Private Limited
Campany} is in a pesitien t0 | Maatrum Technologies and Legal Ventures Private Limited Maatrum Technologies and Legal Ventures Private Limited
exercise contral/jeint cantrol 5 N
Orbit International Orbit International
{wi) Key Management Persannel of |Dr. Armar Agarwal, Managing Director Dr. Amar Agarwal, Managing Director

Dr. Athiva Agarwal, Wholetime Director

Dr, Athiya Agarwal, Whola-time Director

Mr. Balakrishnan Venkataraman (w.e.f 23 lune 2022)

Mr.Trichur Ramasubramanian Ramachandran
{up to 28 March 2022

Mr. Sanjay Dharambir Anand

M, Sanjay Dharambir Anand

Dr. Ashvin Agarwal

Dr, Ashvin Agarwal

Dr. Ashar Agarwal

Dr. Ashar Agarwal

Dr, Adil Agarwal

Or. Adil Agarwal

Dr. Anosh Agarwal

Dr. Anosh Agarwal

Mrs, Meenakshi Jayaraman

Mrs. Meenakshi layaraman (w.e f 16 December 2021)

Mr. Shiv Agarwal [AHCL)

tr. Shiv Agarwal [AHCL)

Ms. ully H livani {up 1o 13 Aug 2021}

Ms. Lakshmi Subrarmanian

Ms. Lakshmi Subramanian

Mr. Suresh Eshwara Prabhala (AHCL) (up to 04 May 2022)

Mr. Suresh Fshwara Prabhalz {AHCL)

Mr. Venkatesh Ratnasami (AHCL) {up to G5 May 2022)

Mr. Venkatesh Ratnasami [AHCL}

Mr. Udhay Davey {Group CFO)

Mr. Udhay Davey {Group CFC) {w.e.f 02 Decernber 2020)

*Related party relatianships are as identified by the Management and relied upon by the auditors.
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36.2 Transactions carried out with related parties referred to above in the ordinary course of business during the Year:

36.3 Compensation of key management personnel

Particulars Related Party e R
Amount in Rs. Crores Amount in Rs. Crares

Transactions during the Year o

Revenue

Other Income - Business support service Or. Agarwal's Health Care Limited - 0.22

Expenses o

Rent Dr. Agarwal's Eye |nstituta 6.64 5.26

Rent Dr. Ashvin Agarwal - Guesthause 0.36 0.33

Reimbursement of employee expenses (ESOP) Or. Agarwal's Health Care Limited G865 =

Reimbursement of expenses {SAR] Or. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited 0.37 -

Repalrs & Maintenanca Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited 0.34 0.17

Other Expenses Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited - 0.05 -

Purchases IdeaRx Services Private Limited 7.88 7.42

Sales Aditya Jyol Eye Hospita| Private Limited 0.01 =

Cost sharing arrangement Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited - 11.96

Asset Purchase Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited 0.03 0.03

Sale of Asset Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute 0.04 =

Corporste Guarantee charges Dr_ Agarwal's Health Czre Limited Q.07 0.11

Recovery of Expenses

Satary Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited 112 125

Lonsultancy Charges Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited - 0.35

Interest Dr. Agarwal's Health Cara Limited 0.02 0.03

Software maintenance exgenses Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited 0.70 o 0.53

Others.

Dividend Paid Or. Agarwai's Health Care Limited 101 -

Dr. Sunita Agarwaf 0.00 -
Mr. Sanjay Anand 0.00 -

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment Orbit Healtheare Services {Cambedfa] Limited - -

Notes:

(i) The Campany accounts for costs incurred by / on behalf of the Related Parties based on the actual invoices / debit notes raised and accruals as confirmed by such
related parties. The Related Parties have confirmad to the Management that as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, there are no further amounts payable to /
receivable from them, other than as disclosed above. The Campany incurs certain costs on behaif of ather companies in the group. These costs have been
allocated/recoveared from the group companies an a basis mutually agreed to with the group companies.

{n) for "Reimbursement of employee expenses (ESOP)" refer Note 28(d) and 41.4

individuals and market trends. The contribution ta PF smounts to Rs, 0.01 ers as of 31 March 2023,

(iv) The abiove remuneration for KMP’s does not include vehicle allewance, cammunication expenses and other expenses for which the perquisite value Is nil.

Particulars Related Party 202_1-2013 202,1‘2022
Amount in Rs. Crores Amount in Rs. Crares

Short-term employee benefits

{Refer Nate (i]]

Remuneration {Refer Note {iii} below) Dr. Amar Agarwal 2.36 182
Dr. Athiya Agarwal 0.9z 0.87
Mr. Udhay Davey 1.24 0.50
Ms. Jully H fivani - 0.04
Ms. Meenakshi Jayaraman 0.11 0.04

Post-employee benefits

{Contribution to Pravident Fund) Dr. Amar Agarwal .00 0.00

{Refer Note( i} below} Dr. Athiya Agarwal 0.00 0.00
Mr. Udhay Davey 0.00 Q.00
Ms. Meenakshi Jayaraman 0.0 Q.00

Consultancy services

Lonsultancy Dr. Ashvin Agarwal 0.88 1.69
Dr, Ashar Agarwal - 0.16

Others

Reimbursemnent of Expenses Dr. Amar Agarwal 0.33 0.32
Dr. Ashvin Agarwal Q.62 0.21

Director sitting fees Mr. Trichur Ramasubramanian Ramachandran - 0.01
Mr. Balakrishnan 001 -
Mr. Sanfay Anand 001 0.01
Ms. Lakshimi Subramanian 0.01 0.01

Nates:

{i} Excludes gratuity and compensated absences which cannet be separately identifiable from the composite amount advised by the actuary.

(i Also Refer Note 18{i) and Note21{ii).

(i) The rernuneration payable to key management personnel is detarmined by the nomination and remuneration committee having regard to the perfarmance of
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36.4 Balances outstanding as at year end

As at As at
Particulars Related Party 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amount in Rs, Crores Amaunt in Rs. Crores
Assets - Receivables
Other Current Financial Assets Or. Agarwal's Health Care Limited Q.25 242
Trade Receivables Aditya lyot Eve Hospita! Private Limited 0.01 2
Non-Current Financial Asset - Loans (Rental Dr. Agarwal's Eye [nstitute 4.58 4.58
Depasit}
Liahilities
Other Fnancial liabilities Dr, Agarwal's Health Care Limited 0.37 -
Trade Payables ideaRx Services Private Limited 0.93 1.88
Trade Payables Or, Agarwal's Health Care Limited 0.07 -
DOr, Amar Agarwal 0.22 -
Mr. Udhay Davey 0.10 0.03
Ms. Meenakshi Jayaraman 0.01
Elisar Life Sclences Private Limited & 0.03
Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute 043 0.50
Notes:-
{i) The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantaes have been given or received. There have been no instances of amounts dua to

cr due fram related parties that have been written back or written off or otherwise provided for during the year.
[ii} Also refer Note B, 15, 2nd 22,
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37 Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in providing eye care and related services pravided from its hospitals which are focated in India. 8ased on the "management
approach” as defined in Ind-AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker ([CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by the overall business segment, i.e. Eve care related sales and services.

As the allocation of resources and profitability of the business is evaluated by the CODM on an overall basis, with evaluation into individual categories
to understand the reasons for variations, no separate segments have been identified. Accordingly no additicnal disclosure has been made for the
segmental revenue, segmental results and the segmental assets & liabilities. All of the Company's on current assets and fixed assets are in India.

37.A The Company has maintained backup on daily basis of its accounting records maintained in electronic mode. The backup is maintained in servers

physically located outside india.

38 Leases

A.  The foliowing is the breakup of current and non-current ease liabilities as at year end:

{Amaount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars pEEE At
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Current 10.67 5.10
Non-current 177.97 156.42
Total 188.64 161.52
B. The contractual maturities of undiscounted lease liabilities as at year end on an undiscounted basis is as follows:
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars Aslat Aslat
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Payable - Not |ater than one year 21.90 5.10
Payable - Later than one year bui not later than five years 73.45 15.58
Payable - Lates than five years 355.00 140.84
Total 449.95 161.52

C.  Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

(Amount in Rs. Crores)

. For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Interest an lease liabilities 5.58 4.33
Expenses relating to short term leases 322 2.89
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 10.37 8.35

0. Amcunts recognised in the Cash Flow Staternant:

[Amount in Rs. Crores)

. For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Total cash outflow for leases (8.44} {12.31)
39 Earnings Per Share
" For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Farnings Per Share - Basic —Rs. 78.55 51.29
Earnings Per Share - Diluted — Rs. 78.55 31.29
Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders - Rs. in crores {Basic and Diluted) 36.92 24.10
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares [Face Value Rs. 20 Each)- Basic and Diluted {Nos.) 4,700,000 4,700,000
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40 Finant Instruments

20,1 Capltal Management
The Company manages capital fsk in order to maximize sharsholders’ profit by maintaining sound/aptimal capital structure, Far tha gurpose of the Campany's capital
management, capital Includes equlity share Capital and Qther Equity and Debt includes Barrewings and Other Finandal Liabilities net of Cash and bank balances. The Company
monitars capital an tha basis of the foliowing gearing ratio. There is ne change in the averall capital risk management strategy of the Company campared to last year.

Gearing Rati
{Amount in 5. Crores)
;. As el Fsat
I
Paticulats 315t March 2023 319t March 2021
|Borrawings and Other Financial Liabilities 238.57 20102
Cash and Bank Balance 28.10)
Net Dehr {A) 210.47
Tatal £quity (B} 113.34
Dabt 1o equity ratio {A/B) 1.86
40.2 Categories of Finandal Instrumants

The earrying value of the finandal instruments by categarfes as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is as follows:
(Amiunt {rt Rs. Crores)

[ Carrying Value Fair Value
Particulers Asat Asat As 3t Agat
13t March 2023 3lstMarch 2022 | 31st March 2023 31st March 2002

(a] Einencial Assets
Meesured at smortised cost
- Cach and Bank balances 2738 2211 2738 2811
- Other Bank balances n 0.69 072 069
- Trade receivables 1011 A67 1011 867
- Other financial assets 8.22 10.52 8.2 1052

47.43 47.89 4743 47.99
b} Financiz| Uabjjities :

dat
- Borrowmgs 3194 4383 3194
Trade Payables 25.67 2663 25.67

- Laage Liabilities 16152 18864 16152
- Other finanosl liabilities 610 7.56 6.10 156

265.26 226.69 265.26 226.69

The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade raceivables, loans, bosrawings, trade payables and other current Anancizl zszats and liabilities
spproximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of thess instruments

The fair value of the financiai assets znd liabilitdes Js included at the amount at which the instrurment couild he exchanged in a curren! transaction between willing parties, other than
in aforced ar liquidatfan sale

‘Tha followlng methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value /amartized cost

1) Long-term fixed-rate receivables/barrowings are =valuated by the Company based on parameters such as intetest rales, speciic country risk factors, Individual fosses and
creditworthiness of the receivakles

2] The fair value of ungusted instruments, loans from banks and other financis! labilities, as well as ather nan-current financial fiahilitias are estimated by discaunting future rash
flaws using rates currently available for debt an similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In addhtion te being sensitive 1o a reasonably passibls change In the farecast cash
flows or discount rate, the fair value of the unquoted instruments is also sensitive to @ reasonzbly possible change in the growth ratas. The valuation reguires management to use
nnhservahle inputs In the madel, of which the sigrlicant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables batow. Management regulasly assesses a range of re3sanably passible

fer those significant unobservable inputs and their impact on the total fair value,

) Fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrawings and loans are determined by slng the Effective Interest Rate rethoad using discount rate that reflects the issuer's
‘borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non- performance risk a5 a1 33 March 2023 was assessed to be mslgnificant

Fair Vafue Hierarchy

Level 1- Quoted prices {unadjusied) in active markets far identical asssts or liabllities.

Level 2: Inputs other than qucted pricas included within Level 1 that are abservabile far the asset or liability, ¢ithar directly ar indirectly
Level 3: Inputs for the assats or liabilities that are not based on chservable markat data {unobservabla Inputs).

There were nn items of financial assets or inancial liabilitles which ware valued at fair value 2z af 31 March 20623 and 31 March 2022

20.3 Financial Risk Mansgemant Framework

The Company's Board of directors has overall responsibility far the establishment and oversight of tha Company’s sk management frame=wark. The Company managas financial risk
relating to the oparations through internal risk reports which analyse exgasure by degree and mzgnitude of risk

The Campany’s activities expass it to avariety of financial risks: llquidity risk, credit risk and markat risk {including interest rate risk and other price nsk). The Campany’s primary risk
management facus ks ta minimize pataptial adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company's risk management assessment and polictes and prozesses are
established ta idantily and analyze the risks faced by the Campany, ko sek appropriate fisk limits and contrals, and to maniter isks and complianee with the same Risk assassment
and manzgement policies ane precesses are reviewsd ragularly to refleck changes In market conditions and the Company's activities. The Board of Dirsctars and the Audit
Cammittes i ihle for the Campany's risk agéssmant and management policies and processes

|a) Yiquidity Risk danagement

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Campany cannet meet its financial nbligations as they herame due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring as far a5 posstle, that
it will alwiys Have sufficient quidity tn meat its fiabilites when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without [ncurring unacceptable losses or nsk to the Company's
reputation. The Company malatains adequate reserves snd banking facifties, and cantinuausly monitors the Farecast and actal cash Flaws by matching maturing profiles of
fanciel assats and financial Ilabilities in sccordanca with the approved risk management policy of the Company perlagically. The Company believes that the working capital
tineluging banking imits nat utilised) and its cash and cash equivalent are sufficlent ke meet its short and mediura term requirements
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Liquidity and Interest Risk Tablas :
The following tables datail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financlal liabilities with agreed sspayment periods. The tables inchede bath intarest

and principal cash flows

Ta the extent that interest fiaws are floating rate, tha undiscounted amuount is derived from interest mia curves st the end ol the reparting period The rontractual maturity s basad
on the sarfiest date on which the Campany may be requirsd ta pay

= ' H——
Particulars | 1taSyears Syears and sbave Total

315t March 2023 | i

interast bearing® 19.15 5010 162.12 23338

Ngat-interest bearing 30.79 110 3189

Total 49.94 51.20 164.12 265.26

ILst March 2032

Intarast bearing nn 26,30 15669 19521

Non-[ntarest bearing 3143 - 3148

Total 43,7 26.30 156.69 226.69

*Includes Lease Vabilitles

The fallowing tables detail the Company's rermaining contractual matunity fer ils non-derivative (lnancial Assets with agreed rapayment periads. The Campany does not hald any
derivative financial Instrument.

Less than 1

Particulars jcxisn, | 1o 5 years 5years and abave Total
315t March 2023
Interest baaring 12.77 71 19.88
Non-interest beariag 2755 | - 2755
Tatal 40.32 | - 7.11 47.43
315t March 2022
Interast hearing 1384 389 an 22,45
Non-interest bearing 264 233 as? 3554
Tatal 36.48 6.22 529 47.99
{h} Credit Rish:
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Campany if a custemer or caunterpatty to a financial insbrument fails to meet its e b . Cradit sk of
bath, the direct risk of dafautt and the risk of ion of cred inese as well 25 o af sisks. Financial instriments that are subject to concentrations of aredit
nsk grincipally cansist of trade n cash and cash lants, bank deposits aned iber financial assets. Nare of the other financis instruments of tha Campany resull in
material concentration of ceedit risk Credit risk [ contralied by analysing credit imits and creditwarthd f custamersan a i basis tg whom the credit has been granied

after obraining necessary appravals for cradit.

The carrying amount of the financial assets recarded I thase financial statements, rassed Up for any allowance for ipsses, reprasents the maximum exposures to credit risk.

Trade receivahles: The Company’s exposure o credlt risk 2 influsnced mainly by the individual characteristies of rach rustomer The demographics af thz custamer, ncluding the
default risk of the industry and credit histary, aisa has an influence ap credit risk assessment

Refer Noke 24 and Note 13 for the delails in raspect of revanue and raceivahle from tap custosiars.

Credit risk on current investments, cash & cash equivalent and derivatives is limited as the Company geaerally transacts with banks and financial Institutions with high credit ratings
assipned By international and damestic credit rating sgencies, nvestments prmarily include investment in fised depaosits.

{b.1) Finandng srrangements:
The Campany has access to the following undrawn berrowing facil

s sk the and of the reporting penpd

Amount in Rs. Crores
Particulers Asat As at
315t March 2025 Fst March 2022

From banks - Working camtal imit 006 300

{e) Markat Risk :

tdarket risk is the risk of [95¢ of any future earnings, in cazlizable fair values or in futura cash Aows that may result fram adverse changes in market rmtes and prices (such as interest
rates and foreian currency exchange rates) or in the price of markek risk sensitive instruments as a result of such advarse changes [n market rates and prices. Market risk is
attributatile to il markal risk-sensitive finandial instrumants, all forsign currancy receivables and payabies and all short-term and lang-term debt. The Company is exposed to
imarket risk primarily related to forefgn exchange rete risk and interest rate risk and the market value of its investmants. Thus, the Company's exposure to rmarket risk iz a function of
investing and barrowing activities and revenue generating and opefating artivities in forelgn currancies.

{z.1) Interest rate risk:
|ntersst rate risk is the nsk thal tha fair value or future cash flows af afinancial Instrumant wil fluctuate because of changes in market interet rates The Company's expasure io the
risk of changes in markat interest rates relstes primarily o the Company's debt ohiigations with floaling imerest rates.

The Company’s management monitors the interest fluctuatians, if any, and accordingly, take necassary steps to mitlgate any intarest rate risk

Interest rate sensitiviry analysis
A change {decreasefincroase) of 100 basis pelnts [n intarest rates at the reparting date wauld Increase/{decrease) equity and profit ar loss by Ihe amounis shawn betow. This
analysis assumes that all ether varables remain constant,

Impact an Profit and Loss for the reporting period

For the Year Ended For tha Year Ended
= I1st Karch 2023 31a March 2022
Farfitulurs
increass by Decrease by Incrense by acreuse by
100 bps 100 bps 1ap bps 100 bps
Impact on Profit snd Loss for the reporting period (D.44) 0.44 {025} 0.25
Impact on Total Equity as 2t and of the reporting periad
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 3151 March 2023 SLst March 2022
Increase by [ Deceaseby Increnseby | _Dacrease by
Impact on Total Eauity 2s at end of the reporting period [0.44) gad t0.25)] 025

Fair value of fipaneial astars 2nd finandal labilties that ara not measured at falr valus {but fair value disclosuras are reguired)

The Management cansiders that the rarrylog amount of financial assets and financial liabilities ized in the financial Ll their Fair vatues.

Offsetting of financlal assets and financhal liabllites

The Company has nat affset financial assels and financial liabilities
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41 Share-based payments

41.1 Awards from the Holding Company
The Company is covered under the employee stack option scheme of Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited, india (the helding company). Under the plan, the amployees and docters
af the Company are granted shares 2nd other stock awards of the  holding company, in accerdance with the tarmns and conditions as specified in the plan. The plan is assessed,
managed and administered by the holding company, whose shares and share based benefits have been granted ta the employess and doctars of the Company. The holding
company currently operates an employee stock ontion ["ESOP"} and a share appreciation rights ("5AR"). The Cormpany has zccounted for the amount of expense under Ind AS 102
considering the invoice recaived from the holding company and has made the related disclosures required under INDAS 102 based an infarmation obtained fram the holding
campany. Also Refer Note 38.4 below.

4.2 £50P

The stock awards granted generaily vest over a faur service periad. The annual stock awards are granted effactive of the 28th Novemnber 2022; this affective date is the "award
date" used far stock plan administration purposes and shown in the awards agreemant. The grants are made by the holding company in its sole giscretion and not by the
Company. The maximum number of shares in a stack award is, not exceeding 2% of the Paid Up Capital of the Company, as on August 12, 2022, comprising 1,58,522 Options to o7

for the benefit of the empioyees of the Company.

The following reconciles the share options at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Amount in Rs,

Particulars

Number of options

Weighted average
price of option

31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Options autstanding as at the beginning of the year - -
Add: Options granted during the year 34,880 1,594
Less: Options lapsed/fforfeited during the year . -
Less: Options exercised during the year -
Less: Cptions Transferred during the year -
Options outstanding as at the year end 34,880 1,594

The fair value of each award was estimated on the date of grant using the following assumptions:

Amount in Rs.

|Particulars 2022-23
Option price 2t the grant date 1,593.06
Onption life 4 yaars
Exercise price 2,548

41.3 SAR

Rs. 2,548/ [excercise price) as stated under the Plan.

*PET is defined as efther 1 of the 3 below:
i. On the occurrence of an Initizl Public Offer (PO} by the Cormpany

iii. Any other event that the Board may decide at its own discretion.

will be made at the end of the fourth year.

The share appreciation rights (SAR] gives consultant doctors of the Company the opportunity to receive a cash bonus egual to the appreciation in the vakue of tha units which shall,
far eath Unit, be the difference between Fair Market Value of the equity shares as at Payment Event Trigger{PET)* of Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited {the halding campany} and

fi Entry of any new investor in the Cornpany acquiring mare than 30% shareholding or change of shareholding by more than 30% of the paid up capital in any manner.

However, the payment timing shall nat exceed 4 (four) years from the date of grant. f PET accurred only after 4 [four] years from the date of grant, then the 100% of the payment

Amount in Rs.

. Numher of options Wel.ghted ave.rage
Particulars 31 March 2023 price of option
31 March 2023
$ARs outstanding as at the beginning of the yaar - -
Add: SARs granted during the year 15,876 2,827
Lass: SARs lapsed/forfeited during the year =
Lass: SARs exercised during the year = -
Less: SARs Transferred during the year i -
Options outstanding as at the year end 15,876 2,827

The fair vaiue of each award was estimated on the date of year end using the following assumptions:

Amount irt Rs.
Particulars 2022-23
Share Appreciation Right price at the grant date 2,827
Optian life 5
Exercise price 2,548
41.4 Tatal expense accounted for by the Carpany an account of the above are given below:
Rs. In Crores

Particulars {Refer Note 28 and 36)

Far the year ended

3% March 2023
ESOF cost accounted by the Company 0.96
SAR tost accounted by the Company 0.37

Total

134
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Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 3%st March 2023

42.8 Undisclosed Income

The Company does not have any fransaction which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

42.C Transactions with companies whose name is struck-off

The Company reviewed the status of all its customers and vendors, as at 31 March 2023, in MCA portal, and observed that the Company does not have
any transaction or outstanding with struck off Companies under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act,1956.

42.0 Other Disclosures

{a) The Company neither has any immovakle property nor any title deeds of Immovakle Property not held in the name of the Cornpany.

{b) The Company neither has traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the Firancial year.

{c] The Company doas not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, as at the year ended 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022.

{d] During the Financial year, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Asset and Intangible Assets.

{a) The Company does not have any investment properties as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 as defined in Ind AS 40.

{fl No proceedings have been initiated duzing the year or are pending against the group as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 for holding any
benami property under Benami Property Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988.

{g) The Compary has not advanced or leaped or investad funds to any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermadiaries) with the
understanding {(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:
{1 diractly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or eatities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
{ii) previde any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Tha Company has not received any fund from any person(s)
or entitylies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall;
{i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{ii) provide any guarantas, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(h

As at 31 March 2023, the Company does not have any subsidiaries and hence, the Company complies with clause (87} of section 2 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017,

i} The Company has not granted any loans or advance in the natare of loans to promoters, directors, Key Managerial Personnel and the related
parties {as defined under Companies Act, 2013}, either severally or jointly with any other person.
43 Approval of Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Company has reviewed the realisable value of all the current assets and has confirmed that the value of such assets in the
ordinary course of business will not be less that the value at which these are zecagnized in the finanrial statements. In addition, the Eoard has also
confiprrel the ca ying value of the non-cirant zecar: in *%e financiel statements. The Board, duly taking into =zcccunt all the relevant disclasties
made, has approved these financial staterments in its meeting held on 96 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars
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Dr. Amar Agarwal Dr. Athiya Agarwal
Chairman & Managing Director Whaoletime Directar
DIN: 00435684 DIN: 01365659
Place : San Diego Place : Doha

Date: 06 May-2023 Date: 06 May 2023
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Mr, B. Udhay Shankar Ms. Meenakshi Jayaraman
Chief Financial Officer Cornpany Secretary
Place : Chennai Place : Chennai

Date: 06 May 2023 Date: 06 May 2023




